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ALLIED WORLD ASSURANCE COMPANY, LTD

CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEETS 
as of December 31, 2024 and December 31, 2023

                                      (Expressed in millions of United States dollars, except share and per share amount)
As of 

December 31, 
2024

As of 
December 31, 

2023
ASSETS:
Fixed maturity investments, at fair value (amortized cost: 2024 $8,039.7; 2023 $8,115.7) $ 7,937.2 $ 8,275.6 
Equity securities, at fair value (cost: 2024 $1,671.9; 2023 $1,538.5)  1,908.5  1,817.1 
Loans (cost: 2024 $1,038.7; 2023 $1,108.5)  942.2  1,082.0 
Other invested assets  1,520.2  1,020.8 
Total investments  12,308.1  12,195.5 
Cash and cash equivalents  562.7  409.0 
Restricted cash  417.2  46.0 
Insurance balances receivable  1,805.8  1,465.1 
Funds held  124.2  143.7 
Prepaid reinsurance  1,169.5  1,148.5 
Reinsurance recoverable  4,140.5  4,294.1 
Reinsurance recoverable on paid losses  370.3  341.9 
Accrued investment income  99.8  103.9 
Net deferred acquisition costs  258.7  248.4 
Goodwill  389.7  390.7 
Intangible assets  52.9  57.2 
Balances receivable on sale of investments  2.4  707.8 
Net deferred tax assets  247.3  165.4 
Amounts due from affiliates  246.8  196.9 
Other assets  286.4  249.6 
Total assets $ 22,482.3 $ 22,163.7 
LIABILITIES:
Reserve for losses and loss expenses  12,098.5  11,519.7 
Unearned premiums  3,636.1  3,567.6 
Reinsurance balances payable  406.8  439.4 
Reinsurance funds held  190.6  198.9 
Balances due on purchases of investments  9.0  777.5 
Other long-term debt  16.7  18.0 
Dividends payable  6.0  12.3 
Amounts due to affiliates  163.6  119.3 
Accounts payable and accrued liabilities  341.6  348.9 
Total liabilities $ 16,868.9 $ 17,001.6 
SHAREHOLDERS’ EQUITY:
Common shares 2024 and 2023: par value USD 1 per share (1,072,849 shares issued and outstanding)  1.1  1.1 
Additional paid-in capital  2,699.5  2,699.5 
Accumulated other comprehensive (loss) gain  (27.6)  16.9 
Retained earnings  2,940.4  2,444.6 
Total shareholder's equity $ 5,613.4 $ 5,162.1 
Total liabilities and shareholder's equity $ 22,482.3 $ 22,163.7 

See accompanying notes to the consolidated financial statements.
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ALLIED WORLD ASSURANCE COMPANY, LTD

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME 
for the years ended December 31, 2024 and December 31, 2023 

(Expressed in millions of United States dollars)

2024 2023
REVENUES:

Gross premiums written $ 6,708.5 $ 6,481.2 
Premiums ceded  (2,025.6)  (1,962.7) 
Net premiums written  4,682.9  4,518.5 
Change in unearned premiums  (52.6)  (233.9) 
Net premiums earned  4,630.3  4,284.6 
Net investment income  524.3  448.2 
Net realized and unrealized investment gains  31.2  409.7 
Other income  0.5  — 
Total revenue  5,186.3  5,142.5 

EXPENSES:
Net losses and loss expenses  3,101.7  2,922.0 
Acquisition costs  504.7  429.2 
General and administrative expenses  509.1  474.4 
Other expense  8.8  5.8 
Amortization of intangible assets  3.7  5.8 
Foreign exchange (gain) loss  (8.8)  16.6 
Total expenses  4,119.2  3,853.8 

Income before income taxes  1,067.1  1,288.7 
Income tax expense  160.3  26.8 
NET INCOME  906.8  1,261.9 

Foreign currency translation adjustments  (13.3)  16.0 
        Foreign currency transactions - equity method investments  (31.2)  9.1 
        Other comprehensive (loss) gain  (44.5)  25.1 
COMPREHENSIVE INCOME $ 862.3 $ 1,287.0 

See accompanying notes to the consolidated financial statements.
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ALLIED WORLD ASSURANCE COMPANY, LTD

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF SHAREHOLDER'S EQUITY
for the years ended December 31, 2024 and December 31, 2023 

(Expressed in millions of United States dollars)

2024 2023

Share capital

Balance at the beginning of the year $ 1.1 $ 1.1 

Balance at the end of the year  1.1  1.1 

Additional paid-in-capital

Balance at the beginning of the year  2,699.5  2,689.5 

Capital contribution  —  10.0 

Balance at the end of the year  2,699.5  2,699.5 
Accumulated other comprehensive gain (loss)

Balance at the beginning of the year  16.9  (8.2) 

Foreign currency translation adjustment  (13.3)  16.0 

Foreign currency transactions - equity method investments  (31.2)  9.1 

Balance at the end of the year  (27.6)  16.9 

Retained earnings

Balance at the beginning of the year  2,444.6  1,342.7 

Net income  906.8  1,261.9 

Dividends  (411.0)  (160.0) 

Balance at the end of the year  2,940.4  2,444.6 

Total shareholder's equity $ 5,613.4 $ 5,162.1 

See accompanying notes to the consolidated financial statements.
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ALLIED WORLD ASSURANCE COMPANY, LTD

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS
for the years ended December 31, 2024 and December 31, 2023

(Expressed in millions of United States dollars)
2024 2023

CASH FLOWS PROVIDED BY OPERATING ACTIVITIES:
Net income  906.8  1,261.9 
Adjustments to reconcile net income to cash provided by operating activities:

Net realized losses (gains) on sales of investments  (375.4)  139.4 
Mark-to-market adjustments  344.2  (549.1) 
Distributed and undistributed income of equity method investments  (52.5)  (15.6) 
Depreciation and amortization  (43.9)  (78.4) 

Changes in:
Reserve for losses and loss expenses, net of reinsurance recoverables  732.4  562.9 
Unearned premiums, net of prepaid reinsurance  47.5  235.8 
Insurance balances receivable  (340.7)  (138.1) 
Reinsurance recoverable on paid losses  (28.4)  (129.0) 
Funds held  19.5  130.3 
Reinsurance balances payable  (32.6)  20.4 
Reinsurance funds held  (8.3)  9.7 
Net deferred acquisition costs  (10.3)  (77.9) 
Net deferred tax assets  (81.9)  (81.9) 
Accounts payable and accrued liabilities  46.9  (17.3) 
Change in amounts due from affiliates  (49.9)  (54.3) 
Change in amounts due to affiliates  84.3  34.9 
Other items, net  (12.3)  (93.9) 

Net cash provided by operating activities  1,145.4  1,159.8 
CASH FLOWS USED IN INVESTING ACTIVITIES:
Purchases of securities  (3,981.9)  (12,228.0) 
Purchases of loans  (184.4)  (897.8) 
Purchases of other invested assets  (481.3)  (121.1) 
Sale and maturity of securities  4,017.3  11,410.1 
Sales of loans  268.9  324.8 
Sales of other invested assets  182.4  61.4 
Purchases of fixed assets  (20.5)  (17.9) 
Sales of fixed assets  0.3  — 

Net cash used in investing activities  (199.2)  (1,468.5) 
CASH FLOWS USED IN FINANCING ACTIVITIES:
Dividends paid  (417.3)  (220.8) 
Capital contribution  —  10.0 
Repayment of other long-term debt  (0.3)  (0.4) 

Net cash used in financing activities  (417.6) 
.
6  (211.2) 

Effect of exchange rate changes on foreign currency cash  (3.7)  7.5 
NET INCREASE (DECREASE) IN CASH, CASH EQUIVALENTS, AND RESTRICTED CASH  524.9  (512.4) 
CASH, CASH EQUIVALENTS, AND RESTRICTED CASH, BEGINNING OF YEAR  455.0  967.4 
CASH, CASH EQUIVALENTS, AND RESTRICTED CASH, END OF YEAR $ 979.9 $ 455.0 
Supplemental disclosure of cash flow information:
— Cash paid for income taxes $ 218.4 $ 127.4 

See accompanying notes to the consolidated financial statements.
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1.     GENERAL

Allied World Assurance Company, Ltd (“Allied World”) was incorporated in Bermuda on November 13, 2001 and is a 
wholly owned subsidiary of Allied World Assurance Company Holdings I, Ltd (“Allied World Bermuda”). Allied World
Bermuda is wholly owned subsidiary of Allied World Assurance Company Holdings, Ltd (“AWACH Bermuda”).

          Allied World, through its branches and wholly-owned subsidiaries (collectively the “Company”), is a global provider of a 
diversified portfolio of property and casualty insurance and reinsurance. References to “$” are to the lawful
currency of the United States and "CHF" are to the lawful currency of Switzerland.

          The Company’s Insurance operations include direct insurance operations in the United States, Bermuda, Canada, Europe 
and Asia Pacific.  The Reinsurance operations include the United States, Bermuda, Europe and Singapore.

On July 6, 2017, Fairfax Financial Holdings Limited (“Fairfax”), through Fairfax Financial Holdings (Switzerland) 
GmbH ("Fairfax Switzerland"), completed the acquisition of 94.6% of the outstanding shares of Allied World Assurance 
Company Holdings, AG (“Allied World AG”) for purchase consideration of $3,977.9 million.  Contemporaneously with the 
closing of the acquisition of Allied World AG, Ontario Municipal Employees Retirement System (“OMERS”), the pension plan 
manager for government employees in the province of Ontario, Alberta Investment Management Corporation (“AIMCo”) and 
certain other third parties (together “the co-investors”) invested $1,580.0 million for an indirect equity interest in Allied World 
AG. The remaining 5.4% of the outstanding shares of Allied World AG was acquired by Fairfax Switzerland on August 17, 
2017 for purchase consideration of $229.0 million in a merger transaction under Swiss law pursuant to which Allied World 
Assurance Company Holdings, GmbH ("Allied World Switzerland") became the surviving entity. This merger resulted in the 
co-investors holding an indirect ownership interest in Allied World Switzerland of 32.6%. 

On July 2, 2019, Allied World Switzerland re-domesticated to Bermuda and became a Bermuda company.  In connection 
with this re-domestication, Allied World Switzerland changed its name to “Allied World Assurance Company Holdings, 
Ltd” (hereinafter referred to as “AWACH Bermuda”).  On July 3, 2019, Fairfax Switzerland, the 100% direct parent entity of 
Allied World Switzerland also re-domesticated to Bermuda and became a Bermuda company.  In connection with this re-
domestication, Fairfax Switzerland changed its name to “Fairfax Financial Holdings (Bermuda), Ltd” (hereinafter referred to as 
“FFH (Bermuda)”). On July 10, 2019, FFH (Bermuda) effected a merger with AWACH Bermuda under Bermuda law pursuant 
to which FFH (Bermuda) became the surviving entity and assumed all of the assets and liabilities of AWACH Bermuda.  In 
connection with this merger, the surviving entity assumed AWACH Bermuda’s name, Allied World Assurance Company 
Holdings, Ltd.

On September 27, 2022, Fairfax purchased 41% of the co-investor's indirect interest of AWACH Bermuda for $650.0 
million resulting in the co-investors owning 17.1% of AWACH Bermuda. On June 23, 2023, Fairfax purchased an additional 
0.5% of the co-investor's indirect interest of AWACH Bermuda for $30.6 million and, as a result, the co-investors currently 
own 16.6% of AWACH Bermuda.

2.     SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

These consolidated financial statements have been prepared in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted 
in the United States (“U.S. GAAP”). The preparation of financial statements in conformity with U.S. GAAP requires 
management to make estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of assets and liabilities and disclosure of 
contingent assets and liabilities at the date of the financial statements and the reported amounts of revenues and expenses during 
the reporting period. Actual results could differ from those estimates. The significant estimates reflected in the Company’s 
financial statements include, but are not limited to:

• The premium estimates for certain reinsurance agreements,
• Recoverability of deferred acquisition costs,
• The reserve for outstanding losses and loss expenses,
• Valuation of ceded reinsurance recoverables,
• Determination of impairment of goodwill and other intangible assets, and
• Valuation of financial instruments.
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Intercompany accounts and transactions have been eliminated on consolidation and all entities meeting consolidation 
requirements have been included in the consolidated financial statements.

The significant accounting policies are as follows:

a) Premiums and Acquisition Costs

Premiums are recorded as written on the inception date of the policy. For certain types of business written by the 
Company, notably assumed reinsurance, the exact premium income may not be known at the policy inception date. In the case 
of quota share reinsurance treaties assumed by the Company, the underwriter makes an estimate of premium income at 
inception. The underwriter’s estimate is based on statistical data provided by reinsureds and the underwriter’s judgment and 
experience. Such estimations are refined over the reporting period of each treaty as actual written premium information is 
reported by ceding companies and intermediaries. Premiums resulting from changes in the estimate of the premium income are 
recorded in the period during which the estimate is changed. Certain insurance and reinsurance contracts may require that the 
premium be adjusted at the expiry of the contract to reflect the change in exposure or loss experience of the insured or 
reinsured.

Premiums are recognized as earned over the period of policy coverage in proportion to the risks to which they relate.  
Reinsurance premiums under a losses-occurring reinsurance contract are earned over the coverage period.  Reinsurance 
premiums under a risks-attaching reinsurance contract are earned over the same period as the underlying policies, or risks, 
covered by the contract. As a result, the earning pattern of a risks-attaching reinsurance contract may extend up to 24 months, 
reflecting the inception dates of the underlying policies.  Premiums relating to the unexpired periods of coverage are recorded 
on the consolidated balance sheets as “unearned premiums”.

Acquisition costs, comprised of commissions, brokerage fees and insurance taxes, are costs that are directly related to the 
successful acquisition of new and renewal business and are deferred. Although permitted under U.S. GAAP to defer certain 
internal costs that are directly related to the successful acquisition of new and renewal business, the Company does not defer 
such costs. Acquisition costs that are deferred, and carried on the consolidated balance sheets as an asset, are expensed as the 
premiums to which they relate are earned.  Expected losses and loss expenses, other costs and anticipated investment income 
related to these unearned premiums are considered in determining the recoverability or deficiency of deferred acquisition costs. 
If it is determined that deferred acquisition costs are not recoverable, they are expensed. Further analysis is performed to 
determine if a liability is required to provide for losses which may exceed the related unearned premiums. Acquisition costs 
recorded in the consolidated statements of comprehensive income (“consolidated income statements”) include other acquisition-
related costs such as profit commissions that are expensed as incurred.  

b) Reserve for Losses and Loss Expenses

The reserve for losses and loss expenses is comprised of two main elements: outstanding loss reserves (“OSLR,” also 
known as case reserves) and reserves for losses incurred but not reported (“IBNR”). OSLR relate to known claims and represent 
management’s best estimate of the likely loss payment. Reserves for IBNR relates to reserves established by the Company for 
claims that have occurred but have not yet been reported to us as well as for changes in the values of claims that have been 
reported to us but are not yet settled.  See Note 6 for additional information.

c) Ceded Reinsurance

In the ordinary course of business, the Company uses both treaty and facultative reinsurance to minimize its net loss 
exposure to any one catastrophic loss event or to an accumulation of losses from a number of smaller events. Reinsurance 
premiums ceded are expensed and any commissions recorded thereon are earned over the period the reinsurance coverage is 
provided in proportion to the risks to which they relate.  For reinsurance treaties that have contractual minimum premium 
provisions, premiums ceded are recorded at the inception of the treaty based on the minimum premiums.  Prepaid reinsurance 
represents unearned premiums ceded to reinsurance companies.  Any unearned ceding commission is included in “net deferred 
acquisitions costs” on the consolidated balance sheets and is recorded as a reduction to the overall net deferred acquisition cost 
balance in the consolidated income statements.  
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Reinsurance recoverable includes the balances due from reinsurance companies under the terms of the Company’s 
reinsurance agreements for unpaid losses and loss reserves, including IBNR, and is presented net of a provision for 
uncollectible reinsurance. Amounts recoverable from reinsurers are estimated in a manner consistent with the estimated claim 
liability associated with the reinsured policy.  The Company determines the portion of the IBNR liability that will be 
recoverable under its reinsurance contracts by reference to the terms of the reinsurance protection purchased. This 
determination is necessarily based on the estimate of IBNR and accordingly, is subject to the same uncertainties as the estimate 
of IBNR.

The Company remains liable to the extent that its reinsurers do not meet their obligations under the reinsurance contracts; 
therefore, the Company regularly evaluates the financial condition of its reinsurers and monitors concentration of credit risk.
 

d) Expected credit losses 

Reinsurance recoverables - The Company actively manages its reinsurance recoverable and reinsurance recoverable on 
paid losses exposure generally by selecting reinsurers with higher credit quality, generally "A-" or higher based on A.M. Best 
issuer ratings. In addition, the Company will assess the collectability of reinsurance recoverable balances at each reporting 
period through a financial analysis of the credit quality of reinsurers.  If applicable, the Company records an adjustment to 
reflect the results of this assessment through an allowance for credit losses that reduces the carrying amount of reinsurance 
recoverable and reinsurance recoverable on paid losses on the consolidated balance sheets. This estimate requires significant 
judgment for which key considerations include:

• paid and unpaid amounts recoverable;
• the relative financial health of the reinsurer are classified by the current A.M. Best issuer risk rating for each 

reinsurer; and
• whether collateral and collateral arrangements exist.

An estimate of the reinsurance recoverable's lifetime expected credit losses is established utilizing a probability of default 
and loss given default method, which reflects the reinsurer’s A.M. Best issuer rating and is net of collateral. The Company 
believes that the historical A.M. Best probability of defaults and loss given default by rating categories is a reasonable and 
supportable basis to forecast and estimate future expected credit losses.

Insurance balances receivables - The Company assesses the collectability of direct and assumed insurance balance 
receivables in each reporting period through an aging analysis of the receivables in the categories of current, 1-30 days, 30-60 
days, 60-90 days and > 90 days past due. A significant portion of amounts included in insurance balance receivables are not 
currently due based on the terms of the underlying contracts. The Company uses internal historical insurance balance 
receivables and collection data to develop a default ratio for each of the aging categories, and believes the Company's loss 
history is a reasonable and supportable basis to forecast and estimate future expected credit losses. The default ratios are then 
applied to the current insurance balance receivables in each aging category to estimate the Company's expected credit losses. 
For insurance balance receivables that have been identified as in default, a specific provision is determined based on historical 
recoverability for defaulted receivables.

e) Investments

The Company has elected the fair value option permitted under U.S. GAAP for all of its fixed maturity investments and 
equity securities (not accounted for using the equity method) at the time each security was acquired.  The Company classifies 
these investments as securities, and they are carried at fair value with any change in unrealized gains or losses recognized in the 
consolidated income statements and included in “net realized and unrealized investment gains (losses)”.  As a result of this 
investment classification, the Company does not record any change in unrealized gains or losses on investments as a separate 
component of accumulated other comprehensive income on the consolidated balance sheets.

Other invested assets consist of investments in hedge funds, private equity funds and real estate held for investment 
purposes, which the Company has elected the fair value option as permitted under U.S. GAAP at the time each investment was 
acquired. For loans, the Company has also elected the fair value option as permitted under U.S. GAAP at the time each loan 
was acquired. In addition, included in the Company’s other invested assets are various investments that are accounted for using 
the equity method of accounting. The Company uses the equity method where it individually, or together with Fairfax, has 
significant influence. Equity method investments are recorded at cost and adjusted for the Company’s proportionate share of 
earnings or losses on a quarterly lag basis. An other-than-temporary impairment charge related to the equity method 
investments is assessed when facts and circumstances exists that indicate an impairment may exist.  An other-than-temporary 
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impairment charge is recorded when it is determined that the carrying value of the equity method investment is below its fair 
value and the Company does not have the intent and ability to hold to recovery. Other investments are recorded based on 
valuation techniques depending on the nature of the individual assets. 

At each measurement date, the Company obtains the fair values for substantially all of the Company’s financial 
instruments from Fairfax, which utilizes a market or income approach to determine a financial instrument's fair value. 
Considerable judgment may be required in interpreting market data used to develop estimates of fair value. Accordingly, actual 
values realized in future market transactions may differ from the estimates presented in these consolidated financial statements. 
The use of different market assumptions and/or valuation methodologies may have a material effect on the estimated fair 
values. 

Valuation techniques used by the Company’s independent pricing service providers and third-party broker-dealers 
include use of prices from similar instruments where observable market prices exist, discounted cash flow analysis, option 
pricing models, and other valuation techniques commonly used by market participants. The Company and Fairfax assess the 
reasonableness of pricing received from these third party sources by comparing the fair values received to recent transaction 
prices for similar assets where available, to industry accepted discounted cash flow models (that incorporate estimates of the 
amount and timing of future cash flows and market observable inputs such as credit spreads and discount rates) and to option 
pricing models (that incorporate market observable inputs, including the quoted price, volatility and dividend yield of the 
underlying security and the risk free rate).

Detailed valuations are performed for those financial instruments that are priced internally, while external pricing 
received from independent pricing service providers and third-party broker-dealers are evaluated by the Company and Fairfax 
for reasonableness. 

Investment securities are recorded on a trade-date basis. Investment income is recognized when earned and includes the 
accrual of discount or amortization of premium on fixed maturity investments using the effective yield method and is net of 
related expenses. Interest income for fixed maturity investments is accrued and recognized based on the contractual terms of the 
fixed maturity investments and is included in “net investment income” in the consolidated income statements. For asset-backed 
securities and any other holdings for which there is a prepayment risk, prepayment assumptions are evaluated and revised on a 
regular basis. Revised prepayment assumptions are applied to securities on a retrospective basis to the date of acquisition. The 
cumulative adjustments to amortized cost required due to these changes in effective yields and maturities are recognized in net 
investment income in the same period as the revision of the assumptions.  The Company’s share of undistributed net income 
from equity method investments is included in net investment income.  The return on investments is managed on a total 
financial statement portfolio return basis, which includes the undistributed net income from equity method investments, and as 
such have classified these amounts in net investment income. Loans are valued at fair market value and are calculated using a 
discounted cash flow approach. The discount rate is determined by market yield. The Company records unrealized gains/
(losses) due to the change in the instrument-specific credit risk of the loans.  

Realized gains and losses on the disposition of investments, which are based upon the first-in first-out method of 
identification, are included in “net realized and unrealized investment gains (losses)” in the consolidated income statements.  

f) Consolidation

Subsidiaries - The Company's consolidated financial statements include the assets, liabilities, equity, revenue, expenses 
and cash flows of the Company. A subsidiary is an entity over which the Company has control. The Company controls an entity 
when the Company has power over the entity, is exposed to, or has rights to, variable returns from its involvement with the 
entity and has the ability to affect those returns through its power over the entity. Assessment of control is based on the 
substance of the relationship between the Company and the entity and includes consideration of both existing voting rights and, 
if applicable, potential voting rights that are currently exercisable and convertible. The operating results of subsidiaries acquired 
are included in the consolidated financial statements from the date control is acquired (typically the acquisition date). The 
operating results of subsidiaries that are divested during the year are included up to the date control ceased (typically the 
disposition date) and any difference between the fair value of the consideration received and the carrying value of a divested 
subsidiary is recognized in the consolidated income statements. Accounting policies of subsidiaries have been aligned with 
those of the Company where necessary.
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The Company may be involved in the normal course of business with variable interest entities (“VIEs”) as a passive 
investor in certain of its hedge fund and private equity fund investments. 

g) Translation of Foreign Currencies

Functional and presentation currency - The consolidated financial statements are presented in U.S. dollars, which is the 
functional and presentation currency of the consolidated group. 

Foreign currency transactions - Foreign currency transactions are translated into the functional currencies of the 
Company's subsidiaries using the exchange rates prevailing at the dates of the transactions. Foreign exchange gains and losses 
resulting from the settlement of such transactions and from the translation at year-end exchange rates of monetary assets and 
liabilities denominated in foreign currencies are recognized in the consolidated income statements. Non-monetary items carried 
at cost are translated using the exchange rate at the date of the transaction. Non-monetary items carried at fair value are 
translated at the date the fair value is determined. 

Translation of foreign subsidiaries - The functional currencies of some of the Company's subsidiaries differ from the 
consolidated group U.S. dollar presentation currency. As a result, the assets and liabilities of these foreign subsidiaries 
(including goodwill and fair value adjustments arising on their acquisition, where applicable) are translated on consolidation at 
the rates of exchange prevailing at the balance sheet date. Revenue and expenses are translated at the average rate of exchange 
for the period. The net unrealized gain or loss resulting from this translation is recognized in accumulated other comprehensive 
income, and only recycled to the consolidated income statements upon reduction of an investment in a foreign subsidiary.

h) Cash and Cash Equivalents and Restricted Cash

Cash and cash equivalents include amounts held in banks, time deposits, commercial paper, discount notes and 
U.S. Treasury Bills with maturities of less than three months from the date of purchase.  Restricted cash primarily relates to 
cash held in trust accounts in favor of cedents, other counterparties or government authorities, as well as accounts that are 
pledged as collateral for the Company's letter of credit facilities.

i) Income Taxes

The Company and certain of its subsidiaries operate in jurisdictions where they are subject to income taxation. Current 
and deferred income taxes are charged or credited to operations, or to shareholders' equity in certain cases, based upon enacted 
tax laws and rates applicable in the relevant jurisdiction in the period in which the tax becomes payable. Deferred income taxes 
are provided for all temporary differences between the bases of assets and liabilities used in the financial statements and those 
used in the various jurisdictional tax returns.

It is the Company’s policy to recognize interest accrued related to unrecognized tax benefits in “interest expense” and 
penalties in “general and administrative expenses” in the consolidated income statements. The Company has not recorded or 
accrued any interest or penalties during the years ended December 31, 2024 and December 31, 2023.

j) Share-based Awards

The Company participates in the Fairfax Financial Holdings Limited 1999 Restricted Share Plan (the "Fairfax Plan"). The 
Fairfax Plan generally provides officers, key employees and directors who were employed by or provided services to the 
Company or its subsidiaries with awards of restricted shares of Fairfax common stock.  As part of the Fairfax Plan, the 
Company purchases, from time to time, Fairfax shares for issuances to employees.  The Fairfax shares are recorded in 
“additional paid-in capital” in the consolidated balance sheet and based on the fair value at the time of purchase. The restricted 
share awards vest on the five-year anniversary of the grant date. Forfeitures are recorded as incurred.   

k) Goodwill and Intangible Assets

The Company classifies its intangible assets into three categories: (1) intangible assets with finite lives subject to 
amortization, (2) intangible assets with indefinite lives not subject to amortization, and (3) goodwill. Intangible assets, other 
than goodwill, generally consist of customer renewal rights, distribution channels, internally generated software, non-compete 
covenants, trademarks, and insurance licenses.
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For intangible assets with finite lives, the value of the assets is amortized over their expected useful lives and the expense 
is included in “amortization of intangible assets” in the consolidated income statements. The Company tests assets for 
impairment if conditions exist that indicate the carrying value may not be recoverable. If, as a result of the evaluation, the 
Company determines that the value of the intangible assets is impaired, then the value of the assets will be written-down in the 
period in which the determination of the impairment is made. 

For indefinite lived intangible assets, the Company does not amortize the intangible asset but evaluates and compares the 
fair value of the assets to their carrying values on an annual basis or more frequently if circumstances warrant. If, as a result of 
the evaluation, the Company determines that the value of the intangible assets is impaired, then the value of the assets will be 
written-down in the period in which the determination of the impairment is made.

Goodwill represents the excess of the cost of acquisitions over the fair value of net assets acquired and is not amortized. 
Goodwill is assigned at acquisition to the applicable reporting unit(s) based on the expected benefit to be received by the 
reporting units from the business combination. The Company determines the expected benefit based on several factors 
including the purpose of the business combination, the strategy of the Company subsequent to the business combination and 
structure of the acquired company subsequent to the business combination. A reporting unit is a component of the Company’s 
business that has discrete financial information that is reviewed by management. In determining the reporting unit, the 
Company analyzes the inputs, processes, outputs and overall operating performance of the reporting unit. The Company has 
four reporting units to which the goodwill is allocated.

For goodwill, the Company performs an annual impairment test, or more frequently if circumstances warrant. The 
Company may first assess qualitative factors to determine whether it is more likely than not that the fair value of a reporting 
unit is less than its carrying amount. The results of the qualitative assessment will determine if an entity needs to proceed with 
the two-step goodwill impairment test. For the years ended December 31, 2024 and December 31, 2023, the Company 
performed a qualitative assessment and concluded it was not more likely than not that the fair value of the Company's reporting 
units were less than its carrying value.

The goodwill impairment test compares the fair value of the reporting unit with its carrying value, including goodwill. If 
the carrying amount of the reporting unit exceeds its fair value, then the goodwill impairment is recognized as the difference 
between the carrying value of a reporting unit and its fair value as calculated in the goodwill impairment test. 

The Company recorded no goodwill impairments during the years ended December 31, 2024 and December 31, 2023.

l) Derivative Instruments

The Company utilizes derivative financial instruments as part of its overall risk management strategy. The Company 
recognizes all derivative financial instruments at fair value as either assets or liabilities on the consolidated balance sheets. The 
accounting for gains and losses associated with changes in the fair value of a derivative and the effect on the consolidated 
financial statements depends on its hedge designation and whether the hedge is highly effective in achieving offsetting changes 
in the fair value of the asset or liability hedged.

The Company may use currency forward contracts and foreign currency swaps to manage currency exposure. The 
Company may also utilize various derivative instruments such as interest rate futures, interest rate swaps, total return swaps and 
index options, for the purpose of managing market exposures, interest rate volatility, portfolio duration, hedging certain 
investments, or enhancing investment performance. These derivatives are not designated as hedges and accordingly are carried 
at fair value on the consolidated balance sheets within “other assets” or “accounts payable and accrued liabilities” with realized 
and unrealized gains and losses included in the consolidated income statements.

m) Funds Held and Reinsurance Funds Held

In the ordinary course of business, the Company's assumed insurance contracts allow the cedent to retain a portion of the  
premium that would be ceded to the Company. Premiums retained in this manner are considered assets and presented as "funds 
held" on the consolidated balance sheet. The Company also has ceded premium and received cash collateral as part of a ceded 
reinsurance contracts, and loss portfolio transfer, which are considered liabilities and presented as a "reinsurance funds held" on 
the consolidated balance sheet. See Note 8 for more details.
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n) New Accounting Pronouncements Not Yet Adopted or Effective in 2024

In June 2022, the Financial Accounting Standards Board ("FASB") issued ASU 2022-03, "Fair Value Measurement 
(Topic 820): Fair Value Measurement of Equity Securities Subject to Contractual Sale Restrictions" ("ASU 2022-03"). This 
update provides clarification that a contractual restriction on the sale of an equity security is not part of the unit of account of 
the equity security and therefore, is not considered when measuring fair value. The amendments also clarify that an entity as a 
separate unit of account cannot recognize and measure a contractual sale restriction. The update also requires certain disclosures 
for equity securities that are subject to contractual sale restrictions. ASU 2022-03 is effective for fiscal years beginning after 
December 15, 2024. The Company does not expect the adoption of ASU 2022-03 to have a material impact on its financial 
statements.

In December 2022, the FASB issued ASU 2022-05, "Financial Services—Insurance (Topic 944): Transition for Sold 
Contracts" ("ASU 2022-05"). This update requires an insurance entity to apply a retrospective transition method as of the 
earliest period or the beginning of the prior fiscal year. The update provides amendments on ASU 2018-12, "Financial Services
—Insurance (Topic 944): Targeted Improvements to the Accounting for Long-Duration Contracts (LDTI)". The amendments 
allow an insurance entity to make an accounting policy election on a transaction by transaction basis. ASU 2022-05 is effective 
for fiscal years beginning after December 15, 2024. The Company does not have insurance contracts within the scope of ASU 
2022-05 and therefore does not expect the adoption of ASU 2022-05 to have a material impact on its financial statements.

In March 2023, the FASB issued ASU 2023-02, "Investments—Equity Method and Joint Ventures (Topic 323): 
Accounting for Investments in Tax Credit Structures Using the Proportional Amortization Method (a consensus of the 
Emerging Issues Task Force)" ("ASU 2023-02"). This update permits reporting entities to account for their tax equity 
investments regardless of tax credit program from which their tax credits are received. ASU 2023-02 is effective for fiscal years 
beginning after December 15, 2024. The Company does not currently use the proportional amortization method and does not 
have investments in low-income-housing tax credit (LIHTC) structures and as such, does not expect the adoption of ASU 
2023-02 to have a material impact on its financial statements.

In December 2023, the FASB issued ASU 2023-09, "Income Taxes (Topic 740) Improvements to Income Tax Disclosures 
("ASU 2023-09"). This update requires, on an annual basis, specific categories within the rate reconciliation and additional 
information to reconcile items that are 5% or greater of pretax income (or loss) and the statutory income tax rate. ASU 2023-09 
is to be applied on a prospective basis (retrospective application is permitted) and for non-public entities is effective for annual 
periods beginning after December 15, 2025, with early adoption permitted. The Company is assessing the impact that the 
adoption of ASU 2023-09 will have on future financial statement disclosures.

In March 2024, the FASB issued ASU 2024-01, "Compensation—Stock Compensation (Topic 718): Scope Application of 
Profits Interest and Similar Awards" ("ASU 2024-01"). This update requires companies to assess whether profit interest awards 
provided as compensation to employees or non-employees in return for goods or services should be accounted for under Topic  
718. For non-public entities, ASU 2024-01 is effective for annual periods beginning after December 15, 2025, and interim 
periods within those annual periods. The Company does not provide profit interest awards to employees or non-employees and 
does not expect the adoption of ASU 2024-01 to have a material impact on its financial statements.

3.     INVESTMENTS

a) Securities

Securities accounted for at fair value with changes in fair value recognized in the consolidated income statements by 
category are as follows:

 December 31, 2024 December 31, 2023
 Fair Value Amortized Cost Fair Value Amortized Cost
U.S. government and government agencies $ 4,868.8 $ 4,935.7 $ 5,393.9 $ 5,271.5 
Corporate debt  1,714.7  1,711.0  1,768.7  1,757.2 
Non-U.S. government and government agencies  1,250.3  1,289.5  1,008.9  986.0 
States, municipalities and political subdivisions  100.6  100.7  99.9  96.7 
Asset-backed  2.8  2.8  4.2  4.3 
Total fixed maturity investments $ 7,937.2 $ 8,039.7 $ 8,275.6 $ 8,115.7 
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 December 31, 2024 December 31, 2023
 Fair Value Cost Fair Value Cost
Equity securities $ 1,908.5 $ 1,671.9 $ 1,817.1 $ 1,538.5 
Loans  942.2  1,038.7  1,082.0  1,108.5 
Other invested assets 631.9  618.7  585.0  582.5 

$ 3,482.6 $ 3,329.3 $ 3,484.1 $ 3,229.5 

 Other invested assets, included in the table above, include investments in private equity funds and real estate investment 
that are accounted for at fair value, but excludes other private securities that are accounted for using the equity method of 
accounting, described below in Note 3(b).

The maturity distribution of the fixed maturity portfolio (on a fair value basis) as of December 31, 2024 and 
December 31, 2023 was as follows: 

 December 31, 2024 December 31, 2023
Due in one year or less $ 709.8 $ 688.9 
Due after one year through five years  2,816.9  2,483.1 
Due after five years through ten years  3,751.0  4,875.9 
Due after ten years  656.7  223.5 
Asset-backed  2.8  4.2 
Total $ 7,937.2 $ 8,275.6 

The following table shows the credit quality of the Company's fixed maturity portfolio, as rated by S&P, as of 
December 31, 2024 and December 31, 2023:

Fixed Income Credit Quality: December 31, 2024 December 31, 2023

Rating Fair Value Percentage Fair Value Percentage
U.S. government and agencies $ 4,868.8  61.3 % 5,393.9  65.2 %
AAA/Aaa 580.8  7.3 % 647.6  7.8 %
AA/Aa 537.6  6.8 % 375.3  4.5 %
A/A 766.7  9.7 % 663.3  8.0 %
BBB/Baa 1,043.9  13.2 % 1,001.3  12.1 %
Total BBB/Baa and above 7,797.8  98.3 % 8,081.4  97.6 %

BB/Ba 103.7  1.3 % 154.4  1.9 %
CCC+ and below 35.7  0.4 % 39.8  0.5 %

Total $ 7,937.2  100.0 % 8,275.6  100.0 %

b) Other Invested Assets
 

Details regarding the carrying value, redemption characteristics and unfunded investment commitments of the other 
invested assets portfolio as of December 31, 2024 and December 31, 2023 were as follows:
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Fund Type
Carrying Value as of 
December 31, 2024

Investments
with

Redemption
Restrictions

Estimated
Remaining
Restriction

Period

Investments
without

Redemption
Restrictions

Unfunded
Commitments

Private equity $ 362.8 $ 253.5 1-10 Years(1) $ 109.3 $ 54.1 
Levered credit  43.7  43.7 1-2 Years(1)  —  55.8 
Real estate  200.8  173.2 1-8 Years11  27.6  8.3 
Total private equity  607.3  470.4  136.9  118.2 
Real estate investment  24.6  —  24.6  — 
Total other invested 
assets at fair value  631.9  470.4  161.5  118.2 
Other private 
securities  888.3  —  888.3  — 
Total other invested 
assets $ 1,520.2 $ 470.4 $ 1,049.8 $ 118.2 

(1) $87.7 million of private equity investments have lock-up periods until dissolution.

Fund Type
Carrying Value as of 
December 31, 2023

Investments
with

Redemption
Restrictions

Estimated
Remaining
Restriction

Period

Investments
without

Redemption
Restrictions

Unfunded
Commitments

Private equity $ 312.0 $ 213.6 1-8 Years(1) $ 98.4 $ 50.7 
Levered credit  67.8  67.8 1-2 Years11  —  56.3 
Real estate  183.0  183.0 2-6 Years11  —  4.9 
Total private equity  562.8  464.4  98.4  111.9 
Real estate investment  22.2  —  22.2  — 
Total other invested 
assets at fair value  585.0  464.4  120.6  111.9 
Other private 
securities  435.8  —  435.8  — 
Total other invested 
assets $ 1,020.8 $ 464.4 $ 556.4 $ 111.9 

(1)   $72.4 million of private equity investments have lock-up periods until dissolution.

The following describes each investment type:

• Private equity (primary and secondary): Primary equity funds include funds that may invest in companies and 
general partnership interests, as well as direct investments. Secondary funds buy limited partnership interests from 
existing limited partners of primary private equity funds. As owners of private equity, funds may seek liquidity by 
selling their existing interests, plus any remaining commitment, to secondary market participants. These funds cannot 
be redeemed because the investments include restrictions that do not allow for redemption until termination of the 
funds.

• Levered credit (including mezzanine debt): Levered credit funds invest across the capital structures of upper middle 
market and middle market companies in connection with leveraged buyouts, mergers and acquisitions, 
recapitalizations, growth financings, refinancings and other corporate purposes. The most common position in the 
capital structure of mezzanine funds will be between the senior secured debt holder and the equity; however, the funds 
in which the Company is invested may include secured debt, subordinated debt, preferred stock and/or private equity. 
These funds cannot be redeemed because the investments include restrictions that do not allow for redemption until 
termination of the funds.

• Real estate funds: Private real estate funds invest directly (through debt and equity) in commercial real estate 
(multifamily, industrial, office, student housing and retail) as well as residential property.  Real estate managers have 
diversified portfolios that generally follow core, core-plus, value-added or opportunistic strategies.  These funds cannot 
be redeemed because the investments include restrictions that do not allow for redemption until termination of the 
funds.
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• Real estate investment: This includes an interest in a commercial building.
• Other private securities (a/k/a investments in associates): These securities mostly include strategic non-controlling 

minority investments in private companies that are accounted for using the equity method of accounting. See Note 3(c) 
for further details.

c) Investment in Associates

The Company's investments in associates are as follows:

As of December 31, 2024

Year Ended 
December 
31, 2024 As of December 31, 2023

Year Ended 
December 
31, 2023

Ownership 
Percentage(1) Fair Value

Carrying 
Value

Share of 
Profit (Loss)

Ownership 
Percentage(1) Fair Value

Carrying 
Value

Share of 
Profit (Loss)

Eurobank 
Ergasias Services 
& Holdings S.A. 
("Eurobank")  3.8 % $ 315.7 $ 228.9 $ 56.4  3.7 % $ 243.1 $ 198.2 $ 9.4 
Helios Fairfax 
Partners ("HFP")  5.6 %  9.2  27.9  (5.4)  5.6 % 12.0 33.3  1.5 
Stelco(2)  — %  —  —  5.9  7.5 % 156.9 93.0  7.6 
KWF UK Holdco  — %  —  —  1.4  5.4 % 4.3 4.4  (1.8) 
Grivalia 
Hospitality S.A.  3.2 %  21.0  18.5  (2.5)  1.8 % 22.4 22.4  0.3 
ONX INC.  3.8 %  17.8  16.9  0.4  3.8 % 15.8 16.4  (1.5) 
FF Meadow  21.1 %  98.9  98.9  —  27.4 % 68.1 68.1  — 
Waterous III  17.7 %  49.7  49.7  (9.1)  —  —  —  — 
Dexterra Group 
Inc(3)  11.1 %  38.5  29.2  5.7  —  —  —  — 
Sleep Country 
Holdings Inc.  40.1 %  212.1  212.1  —  —  —  —  — 
Peak 
Achievement 
Athletics Inc  45.1 %  192.1  192.1  —  —  —  —  — 
Other(3)  21.2 %  13.4  14.1  (0.3)  —  —  —  — 
Investment in 
associates $ 968.4 $ 888.3 $ 52.5 $ 522.6 $ 435.8 $ 15.5 

(1) Represents the Company's ownership interest only.
(2) On November 1, 2024, the Company sold all of its interests in Stelco and recorded a gain of $109.0 million.
(3) These investments were reclassified from equity securities to investment in associates as the Company, collectively with Fairfax, has 

significant influence over these investments.
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d) Net Investment Income

 Year Ended December 31,
 2024 2023
Fixed maturity investments $ 367.3 $ 310.5 
Equity securities  20.6  42.5 
Other invested assets: hedge funds and private equity  23.3  26.9 
Other invested assets: other private securities  52.5  15.3 
Loans  100.9  86.7 
Cash and cash equivalents  35.1  26.5 
Derivatives  (10.9)  (7.9) 
Expenses  (64.5)  (52.3) 
Net investment income $ 524.3 $ 448.2 

 
e) Net Realized and Unrealized Gains and Losses 

 Year Ended December 31,
 2024 2023
Gross realized gains on sale of invested assets $ 346.5 $ 34.2 
Gross realized losses on sale of invested assets  (9.9)  (182.2) 
Net realized and unrealized gains (losses) on derivatives  90.8  (1.8) 
Mark-to-market gains (losses):

Fixed maturity securities  (262.6)  351.5 
Equity securities  (64.7)  265.5 
Loans  (80.1)  8.2 
Other invested assets  11.2  (65.7) 

Net realized and unrealized investment gains $ 31.2 $ 409.7 

f) Pledged Assets

As of December 31, 2024 and December 31, 2023, $1,629.6 million and $1,455.5 million, respectively, of cash and cash 
equivalents and investments were deposited, pledged or held in trust accounts in favor of ceding companies and other 
counterparties or government authorities to comply with reinsurance contract provisions and insurance laws.

In addition, as of December 31, 2024 and December 31, 2023, a further $641.3 million and $862.4 million, respectively, 
of cash and cash equivalents and investments were pledged as collateral for the Company’s letter of credit facilities. See Note 
10(c) for details on the Company’s credit facilities.

4.  DERIVATIVE INSTRUMENTS

As of December 31, 2024 and December 31, 2023, none of the Company’s derivatives were designated as hedges for 
accounting purposes. The following table summarizes information on the location and amounts of derivative fair values on the 
consolidated balance sheets:
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 December 31, 2024 December 31, 2023

 

Asset
Derivative
Notional
Amount

Asset
Derivative

Fair
Value

Liability
Derivative
Notional
Amount

Liability
Derivative

Fair
Value

Asset
Derivative
Notional
Amount

Asset
Derivative

Fair
Value

Liability
Derivative
Notional
Amount

Liability
Derivative

Fair
Value

Foreign exchange contracts $ 1,090.6 $ 37.6 $ — $ — $ — $ — $ 755.6 $ 8.5 
Total return swaps  —  —  —  —  —  —  58.4  7.6 
Equity indexed put options  300.0  14.6  —  —  248.7  4.2  —  — 
Equity warrants  67.7  5.4  —  —  67.8  4.9  —  — 
Credit default swaps  —  —  449.7  8.3  10.0  —  386.6  7.5 
Contingent value rights  3.4  3.4  —  —  3.4  3.4  —  — 
Interest rate swaps  650.0  0.2  —  —  —  —  650.0  0.3 
Total derivatives $ 2,111.7 $ 61.2 $ 449.7 $ 8.3 $ 329.9 $ 12.5 $ 1,850.6 $ 23.9 

Derivative assets and derivative liabilities are classified within “Other assets” or “Accounts payable and accrued 
liabilities” on the consolidated balance sheets.

The following table provides the net realized and unrealized gains (losses) on derivatives not designated as accounting 
hedges recorded on the consolidated income statements:

Year Ended December 31,
2024 2023

Foreign exchange contracts $ 87.8 $ (13.4) 
Interest rate swaps  0.5  (0.3) 
Equity indexed put options  (5.4)  (7.1) 
Equity warrants  0.5  (2.6) 
Credit default swaps  (0.2)  (10.7) 
Total return swaps  7.6  32.3 
Total net realized and unrealized gains (losses) on derivatives $ 90.8 $ (1.8) 

Derivative Instruments Not Designated as Hedging Instruments

The Company is exposed to foreign currency risk in its investment portfolio. Accordingly, the fair values of the 
Company’s investment portfolio are partially influenced by the change in foreign exchange rates. These foreign currency 
hedging activities have not been designated as specific hedges for financial reporting purposes.

The Company’s insurance and reinsurance subsidiaries and branches operate in various foreign countries and consequently 
the Company’s underwriting portfolio is exposed to foreign currency risk. The Company manages foreign currency risk by 
seeking to match liabilities under the insurance policies and reinsurance contracts that it writes and that are payable in foreign 
currencies with cash and investments that are denominated in such currencies. When necessary, the Company may also use 
derivatives to economically hedge unmatched foreign currency exposures, specifically forward contracts and currency options.

The Company has also entered into Total Return Swaps ("TRS"). TRS are derivatives where one party makes payments 
based on a set rate, either fixed or variable, while the other party makes payments based on the return of an underlying asset, 
which includes both the income it generates and any capital gains. These agreements are designed to protect fixed income 
investments against increasing interest rates. The TRS that the Company holds are for a fixed period of 3 months and rolled 
forward as appropriate.

The Company has entered into long option arrangements, which include equity warrants. An option is a contract that 
allows the holder the right to buy or sell an underlying asset or financial instrument at a specified strike price on or before a 
specified date, depending on the form of the option. An equity warrant is the right to purchase or sell an equity at a specified 
price within a stipulated time frame.
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The Company has entered into Credit Default Swaps ("CDS"). Credit Default Swaps are derivatives where one party 
makes payments either fixed or variable while the other party makes payments in the event of a default of an underlying asset. 
These agreements are designed to protect investment portfolio against credit risk. The CDS that the Company holds are fixed 
rate and payable to the counterparty on a quarterly basis.

The Company has entered into interest rate swaps ("IRS"), which is a type of a derivative contract through which two 
counterparties agree to exchange one stream of future interest payments for another, based on a specified principal amount. The 
Company's interest rate swaps include the exchange of a floating rate for a fixed interest rate of mortgage loans. The IRS are 
designed to keep floating rates of underlying mortgage loans fixed.

5.  FAIR VALUE OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

In accordance with U.S. GAAP, fair value is defined as the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer 
a liability in an orderly transaction between market participants at the measurement date. There is a three-level valuation 
hierarchy for disclosure of fair value measurements. The valuation hierarchy is based upon whether the inputs to the valuation 
of an asset or liability are observable or unobservable in the market at the measurement date, with quoted market prices being 
the highest level (Level 1) and unobservable inputs being the lowest level (Level 3). A fair value measurement will fall within 
the level of the hierarchy based on the input that is significant to determining such measurement. The three levels are defined as 
follows:

• Level 1 - Inputs represent unadjusted quoted prices for identical instruments exchanged in active markets. The fair 
values of all U.S. government securities, short-term non-U.S. government and government agencies and the 
Company’s common stocks that are based on published quotes in active markets are included in the Level 1 fair value 
hierarchy.

• Level 2 - Inputs include directly or indirectly observable inputs (other than Level 1 inputs) such as quoted prices for 
similar financial instruments exchanged in active markets, quoted prices for identical or similar financial instruments 
exchanged in active markets and other market observable inputs.

The fair value of the vast majority of the Company’s investments in bonds are priced based on information provided 
by independent pricing service providers while much of the remainder, along with the Company's foreign currency 
forward contracts, are based primarily on non-binding third-party broker-dealer quotes that are prepared using Level 2 
inputs. Where third-party broker-dealer quotes are used, typically one quote is obtained from a broker-dealer with 
expertise in the instrument being priced. 

The following asset categories are priced using Level 2 inputs; all long-term non-U.S. government and government 
agencies, all state and municipals, corporate debt, asset backed securities, equity index put options, foreign exchange 
contracts, interest rate swaps and credit default swaps where they have been priced using observable market inputs, 
common stocks where prices are obtained from market exchanges in active markets, the Company's senior notes are 
based on reported trades, and the Company's other long-term debt where the fair value is based on the value of the debt 
using current interest rates. 

• Level 3 - Inputs include unobservable inputs used in the measurement of financial instruments. Management is 
required to use its own assumptions regarding unobservable inputs as there is little, if any, market activity in these 
instruments or related observable inputs that can be corroborated at the measurement date. Transfers between fair 
value hierarchy categories are considered effective from the beginning of the annual reporting period in which the 
transfer is identified. The following asset categories are priced using Level 3 inputs - some of the Company's corporate 
debt, derivatives, certain equity securities, all of the Company's real estate and loan investments.
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The following table shows the fair value of the Company’s financial instruments and where in the fair value hierarchy the fair 
value measurements are included as of the dates indicated below:

December 31, 2024
Carrying
Amount

Total Fair
Value Level 1 Level 2 Level 3

ASSETS:
Fixed maturity investments:

U.S. government and government agencies $ 4,868.8 $ 4,868.8 $ 4,868.8 $ — $ — 
Corporate debt  1,714.7  1,714.7  —  1,707.3  7.4 
Non-U.S. government and government agencies  1,250.3  1,250.3  9.4  1,240.9  — 
States, municipalities and political subdivisions  100.6  100.6  —  100.6  — 
Asset-backed  2.8  2.8  —  2.8  — 

Total fixed maturity investments  7,937.2  7,937.2  4,878.2  3,051.6  7.4 
Equity securities  1,908.5  1,908.5  725.4  266.2  916.9 
Private equity and hedge funds(1)  607.3  607.3  —  —  — 
Real estate  24.6  24.6  —  —  24.6 
Loans  942.2  942.2  —  —  942.2 
Total investments  11,419.8  11,419.8  5,603.6  3,317.8  1,891.1 
Derivative assets: 

Foreign exchange contracts  37.6  37.6  —  37.6  — 
Equity warrants  5.4  5.4  —  —  5.4 
Interest rate swaps  0.2  0.2  —  0.2  — 
Equity index put options  14.6  14.6  —  14.6  — 
Contingent value right  3.4  3.4  —  —  3.4 

LIABILITIES:
Derivative liabilities:

Credit default swaps  8.3  8.3  —  8.3  — 
Other long-term debt  16.7  16.7  —  16.7  — 
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December 31, 2023
Carrying
Amount

Total Fair
Value Level 1 Level 2 Level 3

ASSETS:
Fixed maturity investments:

U.S. government and government agencies $ 5,393.9 $ 5,393.9 $ 5,393.9 $ — $ — 
Corporate debt  1,768.7  1,768.7  —  1,744.8  23.9 
Non-U.S. government and government agencies  1,008.9  1,008.9  48.7  960.2  — 
States, municipalities and political subdivisions  99.9  99.9  —  99.9  — 
Asset-backed  4.2  4.2  —  4.2  — 

Total fixed maturity investments  8,275.6  8,275.6  5,442.6  2,809.1  23.9 
Equity securities  1,817.1  1,817.1  708.9  191.2  917.0 
Private equity and hedge funds(1)  562.8  562.8  —  —  — 
Real estate  22.2  22.2  —  —  22.2 
Loans  1,082.0  1,082.0  —  —  1,082.0 
Total investments  11,759.7  11,759.7  6,151.5  3,000.3  2,045.1 
Derivative assets: 

Equity warrants  4.9  4.9  —  —  4.9 
Equity index put options  4.2  4.2  —  4.2  — 
Contingent value right  3.4  3.4  —  —  3.4 

LIABILITIES:
Derivative liabilities:

Foreign exchange contracts  8.5  8.5  —  8.5  — 
Total return swaps  7.6  7.6  —  7.6  — 
Credit default swaps  7.5  7.5  —  7.5  — 

   Interest rate swaps  0.3  0.3  —  0.3  — 
Other long-term debt  18.0  18.0  —  18.0  — 

(1) In accordance with U.S. GAAP, private equity and hedge fund investments are measured at fair value using the net asset value per share (or 
its equivalent) practical expedient and have not been classified in the fair value hierarchy.

Level 3 Financial Instruments

As of December 31, 2024, the Company held financial assets of $1,899.9 million that were measured using Level 3 
valuation inputs. As of December 31, 2023, the Company held financial assets of $2,053.4 million that were measured using 
Level 3 valuation inputs. During the year ended December 31, 2024, the Company transferred $0.5 million of financial assets 
from Level 1 to Level 3 and purchased $272.3 million of financial assets that were included in Level 3. During the year ended 
December 31, 2023, the Company purchased $999.6 million of financial assets that were included in Level 3. For the 
Company's Level 3 investments, the effect on earnings was an unrealized and realized gain of $11.7 million for the year ended 
December 31, 2024 and an unrealized and realized gain of $110.7 million for the year ended December 31, 2023.

The following asset categories have securities that are valued in the Level 3 hierarchy:

• Corporate Debt: When the significant inputs used to price the Corporate debt are broker-dealer quotes and the 
Company is not able to determine if those quotes are based on observable market inputs, they are included in the Level 
3 hierarchy.

• Equity Securities: The Company has certain securities that are valued by Fairfax or the Company and are included in 
the Level 3 fair value hierarchy. When fair value is determined by Fairfax, the fair value is determined by reference to 
various valuation measures for comparable companies and transactions, including relevant valuation multiples.  
Investments are classified as Level 3 because the valuation multiples applied by the Company were adjusted for 
differences in attributes between the investment and the underlying companies or transactions from which the 
valuation multiples were derived.  Preferred stocks are priced using a combination of independent pricing service 
providers and internal valuation models that rely on directly or indirectly observable inputs.  

• Real Estate: Comprised of a commercial real estate investment that was purchased during the year ended 2018. The 
Company engaged a third party to determine the fair value of the investment. The fair value of the commercial real 
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estate investment was calculated using an income capitalization approach and the key unobservable input is the 
discount rate, which was 10.3%.

• Loans: The fair value of the loans are calculated using a discounted cash flow approach. The key unobservable input 
is the discount rate, which for the loans, ranged between 5.0% and 89.5%. For the years ended December 31, 2024 and 
December 31, 2023, the Company recorded unrealized gains of $1.6 million and $2.0 million, respectively, due to the 
change in the instrument-specific credit risk of the loans.

• Equity Index Put Options: The Company has certain equity warrants that are valued using the Black-Scholes model. 
The key unobservable inputs are the historical volatility, which for the equity warrants ranged between 27.3% and 
37.2%.

• Contingent Value Rights: The CVR entitles the Company to a share of any refunds received on approximately $500 
million of deposits on estimated softwood lumber duties paid by Resolute Forest Products, Inc. through June 30, 2022, 
including any interest received on such deposits, net of certain expenses and of applicable tax and withholding. Any 
proceeds attributable to the CVRs will be distributed proportionally to CVR holders, and the value will ultimately be 
determined by the terms and timing of the resolution of the softwood lumber dispute between Canada and the United 
States.

6.  RESERVE FOR LOSSES AND LOSS EXPENSES

a) Basis for estimating the reserves for losses and loss expenses 

The reserve for losses and loss expenses is comprised of two main elements: OSLR (also known as case reserves) and 
IBNR. OSLR relate to known claims and represent management’s best estimate of the likely loss settlement. IBNR reserves 
relate primarily to unreported events that, based on industry information, management’s experience and actuarial evaluation, 
can reasonably be expected to have occurred and are reasonably likely to result in a loss to the Company. IBNR reserves also 
relate to estimated development of reported events that, based on industry information, management’s experience and actuarial 
evaluation, can reasonably be expected to reach the Company’s attachment point and are reasonably likely to result in a loss. 
The Company also includes in IBNR reserves changes in the values of claims that have been reported but are not yet settled. 
Each claim is settled individually based upon its merits and it is not unusual for a claim to take years after being reported to 
settle, especially if legal action is involved. As a result, reserves for losses and loss expenses include significant estimates for 
IBNR reserves.

The reserve for IBNR is estimated by management for each line of business based on various factors, including 
underwriters’ expectations about loss experience, actuarial analysis, comparisons with the results of industry benchmarks and 
loss experience to date. The Company implicitly factors into IBNR reserves inflation by assuming an inflation rate consistent 
with historical trends. The IBNR reserves are calculated as the ultimate amount of losses and loss expenses less cumulative paid 
losses and loss expenses and OSLR. The Company’s actuaries employ generally accepted actuarial methodologies to determine 
estimated ultimate loss reserves.

The Company believes that its current estimates of liabilities appropriately reflect its current knowledge of the business 
and the prevailing market, social, legal and economic conditions while giving due consideration to historical trends and 
volatility evidenced in the liabilities over the longer term.  Although management believes that OSLR and the IBNR reserves 
are sufficient to cover losses assumed by the Company, there can be no assurance that losses will not deviate from the 
Company’s reserves, possibly by material amounts. The methodology of estimating loss reserves is periodically reviewed to 
ensure that the key assumptions used in the actuarial models continue to be appropriate. The Company recognizes any changes 
in its loss reserve estimates, including prior year loss reserve development, and the related reinsurance recoverables in the 
periods in which they are determined and are recorded in “net losses and loss expenses” in the consolidated income statements.
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The reserve for losses and loss expenses consists of the following:

 December 31,
 2024 2023
Outstanding loss reserves $ 2,834.6 $ 2,855.9 
Reserves for losses incurred but not reported  9,263.9  8,663.8 
Reserve for losses and loss expenses $ 12,098.5 $ 11,519.7 

b) Reserve for losses and loss expenses rollforward 

The table below is a reconciliation of the beginning and ending liability for unpaid losses and loss expenses. Losses 
incurred and paid are reflected net of reinsurance recoverables.

 Year Ended December 31,
 2024 2023
Gross liability at beginning of year $ 11,519.7 $ 10,466.4 
Reinsurance recoverable at beginning of year  (4,294.1)  (3,803.7) 
Net liability at beginning of year  7,225.6  6,662.7 
Net losses incurred related to:

Current year  3,114.2  2,922.0 
Prior years  (12.5)  — 
Total incurred  3,101.7  2,922.0 

Net paid losses related to:
Current year  310.9  334.7 
Prior years  2,035.1  2,041.0 
Total paid  2,346.0  2,375.7 

Foreign exchange revaluation and other  (23.3)  16.6 
Net liability at end of year  7,958.0  7,225.6 
Reinsurance recoverable at end of year  4,140.5  4,294.1 
Gross liability at end of year $ 12,098.5 $ 11,519.7 

For the year ended December 31, 2024, the Company recorded net favorable prior year reserve development of $12.5 
million driven by favorable prior year development in the assumed reinsurance line of business. In addition, the Company 
incurred net losses, before reinstatement premiums, of $260.7 million in catastrophe-related losses. The net catastrophe losses 
incurred from Hurricane Milton, Hurricane Helene, PCS events, Storm Boris, Hurricane Beryl, Baltimore Bridge collapse and 
other catastrophe events were $72.5 million, $60.7 million, $34.3 million, $17.0 million, $12.1 million, $12.7 million and $51.4 
million, respectively.

For the year ended December 31, 2023, the Company recorded no net prior year reserve development. In addition, the 
Company incurred net losses, before reinstatement premiums, of $195.3 million in catastrophe-related losses. The net 
catastrophe losses incurred from the Turkey Earthquake, Maui Fire, Europe Hailstorms, Morocco Earthquake, Hurricane Idalia, 
New Zealand Floods and other catastrophe events were $28.3 million, $20.1 million, $11.5 million, $11.0 million, $9.3 million, 
$6.3 million and $108.8 million, respectively.

The Company has not accrued any additional premiums or return premiums as a result of the net prior year reserve 
development during the years ended December 31, 2024 and December 31, 2023. 

Although the Company has historically experienced favorable and unfavorable development in its insurance and 
reinsurance lines, there can be no assurance that conditions and trends that have affected the development of liabilities in the 
past will continue. It is not appropriate to extrapolate future redundancies based on prior years’ development.
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c) Incurred and Paid Loss Development Triangles 

The following information presents the incurred and paid claims information as of December 31, 2024, net of reinsurance, 
as well as cumulative claim frequency and total IBNR reserves by accident year.  The information about incurred and paid 
claims development presented for the years ended December 31, 2015 to December 31, 2023 is presented as supplementary 
information.  

The incurred and paid loss development triangles are presented based on the following:

i. Groupings
Disaggregated based on lines of business within each operating segment.  There are a total of eight incurred and paid 
loss development triangles presented, five of which relate to the Insurance segment and three of which relate to the 
Reinsurance segment.  The eight incurred and paid loss development triangles were selected to create categories that 
were relatively homogeneous yet not so small as to have insufficient actuarial credibility, and are consistent with how 
the Company discloses gross premiums written and net premiums earned by line of business. 

ii. Presentation
The incurred and paid loss development triangles include ten years of historical information. All incurred and paid loss 
development triangles are presented net of reinsurance and excludes unallocated loss adjustment expenses, allowance 
for uncollectible reinsurance recoverables, currency translation adjustments and fair value adjustments related to 
acquired reserves as those balances are not estimated for each accident year.

Acquisitions will be presented in the incurred and paid loss development triangles based on how the acquired reserves 
impact the nature, amount, timing and uncertainty of the cash flows related to the settlement of the reserve for losses 
and loss expenses.  

iii. Foreign exchange
Reserves for losses and loss expenses and paid losses that are not recorded in the United States dollar functional 
currency are revalued at the United States dollar conversion rate at the end of the period. 

iv. IBNR
The ‘Total IBNR’ by accident year disclosed with the incurred and paid loss development triangles includes (1) IBNR 
reserves for unreported events and (2) changes in the values of claims that have been reported but are not yet settled.

v. Claim count
Cumulative reported claims included in the tables below, which are reflected as the actual claim counts shown, consist 
of any reported indemnity claim or expense by claimant (e.g., insured) as of December 31, 2024 with a reserve balance 
greater than one United States dollar (or equivalent foreign currency).  By including only claims with reserves greater 
than one United States dollar (or equivalent foreign currency), the tables do not include any notifications of claims 
which may or may not result in an indemnity claim. The Company has determined that it is impractical to provide 
cumulative reported claim information for the lines of business in the Reinsurance segment as this information is not 
provided to the Company from the cedents.  The Company also does not believe cumulated reported claim counts for its 
Reinsurance segment provides any meaningful information related to the nature, amount, timing and uncertainty of the 
cash flows related to the settled reserve for losses and loss expenses.    
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Insurance Segment:

Casualty 

Incurred Claims and Loss Adjustment Expenses, Net of Reinsurance

Unaudited Unaudited Unaudited Unaudited Unaudited Unaudited Unaudited Unaudited Unaudited December 31, 2024

Accident 
Year 2015 2016 2017 2018 2019 2020 2021 2022 2023 2024

Total 
IBNR

Cumulative 
Reported 
Claims

2015 $ 342.9 $ 350.5 $ 360.0 $ 377.8 $ 389.5 $ 401.6 $ 404.8 $ 414.2 $ 417.5 $ 440.0 $ 8.8  7,926 
2016  313.0  310.3  311.7  317.0  341.3  330.3  348.0  360.1  371.7  10.3  7,493 
2017  280.0  286.1  305.6  316.0  309.4  305.5  323.2  347.0  15.8  7,119 
2018  277.3  286.6  278.8  270.8  257.4  286.4  306.9  19.6  6,904 
2019  292.3  293.7  293.8  279.7  308.1  315.6  35.5  6,385 
2020  318.6  311.7  305.1  281.3  282.1  44.0  5,114 
2021  421.8  410.4  380.3  364.6  127.8  5,075 
2022  494.1  463.5  433.8  265.1  5,616 
2023  463.4  466.3  350.2  6,147 
2024  465.2  421.2  6,128 

$ 3,793.2 

Cumulative Paid Claims and Loss Adjustment Expenses, Net of Reinsurance

Unaudited Unaudited Unaudited Unaudited Unaudited Unaudited Unaudited Unaudited Unaudited

Accident 
Year 2015 2016 2017 2018 2019 2020 2021 2022 2023 2024

2015 $ 23.3 $ 67.1 $ 133.5 $ 227.5 $ 284.3 $ 335.9 $ 350.3 $ 376.1 $ 386.8 $ 407.0 
2016  23.6  69.5  122.2  195.5  230.6  257.1  309.4  336.3  346.3 
2017  20.7  66.0  120.5  177.7  208.7  244.3  285.9  302.2 
2018  18.2  74.7  107.1  147.0  196.4  236.5  269.8 
2019  15.8  60.4  96.7  151.9  234.2  293.0 
2020  11.0  34.1  82.3  149.7  216.1 
2021  11.0  38.9  88.8  218.6 
2022  11.2  85.0  140.6 
2023  12.5  74.7 
2024  17.7 

$ 2,286.0 
All outstanding liabilities before 2015, net of reinsurance $ 68.8 
Liability for losses and loss expenses, net of reinsurance $ 1,576.0 
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Professional liability 

Incurred Claims and Loss Adjustment Expenses, Net of Reinsurance

Unaudited Unaudited Unaudited Unaudited Unaudited Unaudited Unaudited Unaudited Unaudited December 31, 2024

Accident 
Year 2015 2016 2017 2018 2019 2020 2021 2022 2023 2024

Total 
IBNR

Cumulative 
Reported 
Claims

2015 $ 373.0 $ 379.2 $ 383.7 $ 389.0 $ 397.7 $ 390.4 $ 379.5 $ 390.0 $ 386.9 $ 390.7 $ 7.9  723 
2016  341.5  347.3  339.0  360.9  354.6  367.0  362.9  365.7  372.1  12.4  798 
2017  284.3  297.9  289.9  291.5  293.9  291.4  311.6  351.7  16.9  720 
2018  263.1  265.1  267.8  267.7  289.8  329.7  349.5  15.9  879 
2019  255.1  259.1  252.9  282.6  283.9  290.4  29.1  970 
2020  300.4  293.7  280.6  265.2  259.7  45.9  1,013 
2021  497.7  447.6  397.9  357.5  160.1  1,095 
2022  676.3  634.7  574.0  323.8  1,068 
2023  720.7  690.1  465.2  1,469 
2024  636.0  585.2  1,004 

$ 4,271.7 

Cumulative Paid Claims and Loss Adjustment Expenses, Net of Reinsurance

Unaudited Unaudited Unaudited Unaudited Unaudited Unaudited Unaudited Unaudited Unaudited

Accident 
Year 2015 2016 2017 2018 2019 2020 2021 2022 2023 2024

2015 $ 10.5 $ 73.2 $ 138.5 $ 211.6 $ 290.7 $ 316.5 $ 337.6 $ 346.5 $ 362.2 $ 377.7 
2016  12.0  65.7  147.1  216.6  250.8  294.9  313.0  335.8  351.7 
2017  9.3  62.8  112.3  157.9  189.1  225.8  256.1  309.3 
2018  10.4  58.0  110.3  155.0  200.6  263.0  304.6 
2019  20.3  64.4  110.9  166.6  201.6  230.1 
2020  14.5  62.3  107.3  145.9  183.3 
2021  17.1  63.8  108.7  154.5 
2022  26.4  102.1  184.6 
2023  29.0  140.7 
2024  34.2 

$ 2,270.7 
All outstanding liabilities before 2015, net of reinsurance $ 75.7 
Liability for losses and loss expenses, net of reinsurance $ 2,076.7 
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Property 

Incurred Claims and Loss Adjustment Expenses, Net of Reinsurance

Unaudited Unaudited Unaudited Unaudited Unaudited Unaudited Unaudited Unaudited Unaudited December 31, 2024

Accident 
Year 2015 2016 2017 2018 2019 2020 2021 2022 2023 2024

Total 
IBNR

Cumulative 
Reported 
Claims

2015 $ 132.1 $ 131.0 $ 134.2 $ 131.5 $ 129.7 $ 130.0 $ 129.5 $ 129.1 $ 128.9 $ 129.3 $ —  3,772 
2016  122.2  127.6  124.3  122.7  121.4  121.8  130.1  131.1  130.4  —  3,820 
2017  243.7  215.8  207.0  205.0  204.5  216.2  215.6  230.5  (0.2)  3,162 
2018  151.1  157.0  150.5  150.6  167.6  167.6  170.8  0.2  3,029 
2019  119.2  123.7  121.1  121.5  119.3  120.8  0.2  2,676 
2020  157.3  148.5  149.9  147.6  145.7  6.1  2,366 
2021  184.2  161.9  148.7  144.9  1.3  2,420 
2022  170.3  186.8  179.4  4.4  2,987 
2023  218.0  185.4  18.7  3,660 
2024  203.5  78.0  3,226 

$ 1,640.7 

Cumulative Paid Claims and Loss Adjustment Expenses, Net of Reinsurance

Unaudited Unaudited Unaudited Unaudited Unaudited Unaudited Unaudited Unaudited Unaudited

Accident 
Year 2015 2016 2017 2018 2019 2020 2021 2022 2023 2024

2015 $ 55.7 $ 109.5 $ 124.0 $ 127.0 $ 126.8 $ 128.9 $ 128.9 $ 128.6 $ 128.6 $ 128.6 
2016  49.2  98.8  114.1  120.2  125.2  125.8  128.1  130.7  130.4 
2017  62.6  165.6  194.5  206.0  210.3  212.4  213.9  228.7 
2018  68.3  131.1  150.0  158.3  162.3  166.1  168.4 
2019  50.5  93.8  108.8  112.9  118.4  119.2 
2020  46.6  88.9  111.7  128.8  135.0 
2021  43.4  98.9  121.7  131.8 
2022  48.0  120.5  145.7 
2023  56.6  116.5 
2024  59.2 

$ 1,363.5 
All outstanding liabilities before 2015, net of reinsurance $ 1.7 
Liability for losses and loss expenses, net of reinsurance $ 278.9 
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Programs

Incurred Claims and Loss Adjustment Expenses, Net of Reinsurance

Unaudited Unaudited Unaudited Unaudited Unaudited Unaudited Unaudited Unaudited Unaudited December 31, 2024

Accident 
Year 2015 2016 2017 2018 2019 2020 2021 2022 2023 2024

Total 
IBNR

Cumulative 
Reported 
Claims

2015 $ 86.9 $ 86.2 $ 81.9 $ 74.8 $ 70.7 $ 72.9 $ 73.2 $ 74.1 $ 75.3 $ 74.2 $ 0.7  1,299 
2016  113.6  114.6  117.3  110.2  116.9  116.8  119.0  120.8  125.0  2.2  1,663 
2017  147.7  154.4  148.4  140.7  142.7  147.5  155.7  160.2  2.3  2,669 
2018  157.1  158.2  153.2  160.7  175.4  196.2  209.9  3.9  3,450 
2019  209.2  218.1  215.7  233.8  262.9  276.9  8.9  5,084 
2020  231.7  232.5  234.5  251.4  297.5  14.2  4,783 
2021  247.2  229.2  231.8  252.5  21.2  5,025 
2022  254.0  228.9  234.3  35.2  4,583 
2023  236.6  210.1  83.9  3,903 
2024  248.2  188.6  3,234 

$ 2,088.8 

Cumulative Paid Claims and Loss Adjustment Expenses, Net of Reinsurance

Unaudited Unaudited Unaudited Unaudited Unaudited Unaudited Unaudited Unaudited Unaudited

Accident 
Year 2015 2016 2017 2018 2019 2020 2021 2022 2023 2024

2015 $ 9.3 $ 26.3 $ 37.3 $ 46.3 $ 52.8 $ 61.7 $ 65.6 $ 67.5 $ 69.0 $ 72.0 
2016  14.1  43.8  66.2  77.5  88.1  101.7  107.2  112.4  118.1 
2017  22.1  63.7  87.1  106.2  120.6  130.6  143.8  149.5 
2018  27.8  63.3  86.8  110.3  137.7  168.6  190.5 
2019  42.2  99.1  135.6  182.9  228.5  250.6 
2020  39.4  108.6  154.2  195.3  248.7 
2021  39.0  101.2  145.0  200.4 
2022  30.0  91.5  158.0 
2023  34.7  90.6 
2024  25.7 

$ 1,504.1 
All outstanding liabilities before 2015, net of reinsurance $ 6.6 
Liability for losses and loss expenses, net of reinsurance $ 591.3 
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Other specialty

Incurred Claims and Loss Adjustment Expenses, Net of Reinsurance

Unaudited Unaudited Unaudited Unaudited Unaudited Unaudited Unaudited Unaudited Unaudited December 31, 2024

Accident 
Year 2015 2016 2017 2018 2019 2020 2021 2022 2023 2024

Total 
IBNR

Cumulative 
Reported 
Claims

2015 $ 107.8 $ 121.4 $ 123.2 $ 119.8 $ 120.8 $ 119.4 $ 120.7 $ 123.8 $ 124.3 $ 130.1 $ 2.0  13,284 
2016  130.2  137.2  138.3  138.9  142.6  147.5  151.5  156.7  158.2  4.0  16,192 
2017  159.5  158.4  161.1  161.9  172.0  173.9  179.1  181.8  5.9  13,028 
2018  146.6  150.4  156.0  149.8  169.0  167.7  175.6  6.9  11,531 
2019  146.8  160.4  159.4  177.3  165.0  160.0  11.3  12,335 
2020  144.5  153.4  157.8  152.6  158.0  24.5  7,707 
2021  167.4  169.4  165.1  152.0  46.3  5,809 
2022  204.5  190.6  172.8  72.8  4,663 
2023  197.4  202.8  99.8  5,778 
2024  189.1  142.5  5,591 

$ 1,680.4 

Cumulative Paid Claims and Loss Adjustment Expenses, Net of Reinsurance

Unaudited Unaudited Unaudited Unaudited Unaudited Unaudited Unaudited Unaudited Unaudited

Accident 
Year 2015 2016 2017 2018 2019 2020 2021 2022 2023 2024

2015 $ 22.7 $ 56.6 $ 73.8 $ 89.6 $ 103.0 $ 108.4 $ 111.3 $ 115.3 $ 118.4 $ 124.3 
2016  31.6  57.7  77.5  92.9  117.1  128.2  132.5  144.5  150.3 
2017  19.8  64.1  92.2  113.0  130.6  145.4  158.0  166.9 
2018  19.9  52.8  81.8  98.7  123.0  135.0  148.5 
2019  21.8  62.9  89.2  109.6  124.3  136.0 
2020  16.0  42.8  69.2  88.2  110.7 
2021  11.9  41.1  65.4  83.6 
2022  12.1  40.8  69.2 
2023  14.7  61.3 
2024  22.0 

$ 1,072.8 
All outstanding liabilities before 2015, net of reinsurance $ 7.7 
Liability for losses and loss expenses, net of reinsurance $ 615.3 
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Reinsurance Segment:

Property

Incurred Claims and Loss Adjustment Expenses, Net of Reinsurance

Unaudited Unaudited Unaudited Unaudited Unaudited Unaudited Unaudited Unaudited Unaudited As of December 31, 2024

Accident 
Year 2015 2016 2017 2018 2019 2020 2021 2022 2023 2024

Total 
IBNR

Cumulative 
Reported 
Claims

2015 $ 146.0 $ 118.5 $ 113.2 $ 113.8 $ 114.1 $ 114.1 $ 114.6 $ 114.8 $ 115.3 $ 116.3 $ 0.2 n/a
2016  127.7  128.6  132.8  131.2  132.1  132.4  130.9  131.1  132.1  — n/a
2017  292.6  268.4  310.1  312.9  314.2  324.3  326.0  330.9  (1.3) n/a
2018  249.5  252.0  256.1  250.2  250.2  251.0  267.7  (1.1) n/a
2019  150.6  133.9  121.8  131.4  135.9  132.3  0.7 n/a
2020  209.6  267.6  326.7  345.5  370.4  6.3 n/a
2021  322.4  326.9  399.8  421.9  6.0 n/a
2022  405.0  303.5  301.5  31.4 n/a
2023  342.4  448.5  86.8 n/a
2024  631.3  498.1 n/a

$ 3,152.9 

Cumulative Paid Claims and Loss Adjustment Expenses, Net of Reinsurance

Unaudited Unaudited Unaudited Unaudited Unaudited Unaudited Unaudited Unaudited Unaudited

Accident 
Year 2015 2016 2017 2018 2019 2020 2021 2022 2023 2024

2015 $ 46.3 $ 82.2 $ 102.3 $ 107.5 $ 109.6 $ 111.1 $ 113.0 $ 113.8 $ 114.1 $ 114.8 
2016  45.0  96.6  111.1  121.5  125.4  127.0  128.2  129.4  129.7 
2017  62.1  144.1  191.5  246.5  269.4  288.3  294.4  296.2 
2018  72.4  181.0  223.6  238.2  248.3  251.7  271.9 
2019  38.1  87.3  111.6  126.6  135.8  141.8 
2020  100.6  212.9  264.7  316.6  334.1 
2021  98.8  242.8  327.9  365.0 
2022  105.2  248.8  316.1 
2023  93.3  195.5 
2024  67.1 

$ 2,232.2 
All outstanding liabilities before 2015, net of reinsurance $ 31.0 
Liability for losses and loss expenses, net of reinsurance $ 951.7 
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Casualty

Incurred Claims and Loss Adjustment Expenses, Net of Reinsurance

Unaudited Unaudited Unaudited Unaudited Unaudited Unaudited Unaudited Unaudited Unaudited As of December 31, 2024

Accident 
Year 2015 2016 2017 2018 2019 2020 2021 2022 2023 2024

Total 
IBNR

Cumulative 
Reported 
Claims

2015 $ 148.0 $ 146.7 $ 156.8 $ 171.7 $ 156.9 $ 150.1 $ 149.8 $ 151.8 $ 156.2 $ 153.3 $ 8.6 n/a
2016  119.8  110.2  116.9  135.9  134.1  137.5  145.8  145.7  147.6  6.2 n/a
2017  109.8  97.4  127.7  132.1  131.3  148.3  150.2  160.9  7.4 n/a
2018  111.6  103.2  131.0  112.7  124.2  126.1  130.2  8.0 n/a
2019  113.2  91.1  111.9  128.9  144.5  147.3  12.9 n/a
2020  179.6  163.6  171.7  170.7  184.3  45.0 n/a
2021  234.8  176.9  192.0  187.2  54.6 n/a
2022  298.5  255.3  237.7  140.9 n/a
2023  375.0  352.5  262.6 n/a
2024  492.8  472.8 n/a

$ 2,193.8 

Cumulative Paid Claims and Loss Adjustment Expenses, Net of Reinsurance

Unaudited Unaudited Unaudited Unaudited Unaudited Unaudited Unaudited Unaudited Unaudited

Accident 
Year 2015 2016 2017 2018 2019 2020 2021 2022 2023 2024

2015 $ 1.5 $ 13.2 $ 32.5 $ 55.6 $ 78.5 $ 91.9 $ 102.1 $ 115.1 $ 122.7 $ 126.1 
2016  1.6  10.0  24.2  55.4  68.5  85.6  102.0  111.5  118.6 
2017  1.3  10.2  24.5  57.4  70.6  99.8  115.7  127.9 
2018  5.4  15.3  29.3  44.6  62.4  83.0  102.6 
2019  2.5  14.2  29.5  50.8  85.5  107.0 
2020  18.3  35.2  52.7  80.2  106.3 
2021  4.1  18.7  41.0  74.9 
2022 —  6.2  28.6  60.8 
2023 — —  4.8  30.6 
2024  4.4 

$ 859.2 
All outstanding liabilities before 2015, net of reinsurance $ 103.4 
Liability for losses and loss expenses, net of reinsurance $ 1,438.0 
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Specialty

Incurred Claims and Loss Adjustment Expenses, Net of Reinsurance

Unaudited Unaudited Unaudited Unaudited Unaudited Unaudited Unaudited Unaudited Unaudited As of December 31, 2024

Accident 
Year 2015 2016 2017 2018 2019 2020 2021 2022 2023 2024

Total 
IBNR

Cumulative 
Reported 
Claims

2015 $ 125.2 $ 122.3 $ 119.2 $ 115.0 $ 115.5 $ 112.5 $ 112.0 $ 112.6 $ 113.3 $ 113.2 $ 0.5 n/a
2016  116.2  113.6  112.8  111.1  111.4  110.5  109.7  110.0  109.9  0.3 n/a
2017  136.3  101.5  105.7  104.2  103.0  103.3  103.5  103.3  0.1 n/a
2018  99.7  95.2  96.3  96.1  95.8  96.1  96.6  0.1 n/a
2019  94.6  96.9  102.8  111.0  111.4  117.8  0.7 n/a
2020  125.4  126.7  134.4  134.4  129.4  0.6 n/a
2021  116.7  106.3  109.5  111.4  3.2 n/a
2022  174.8  167.0  170.1  7.7 n/a
2023  223.4  46.4  5.5 n/a
2024  36.1  30.5 n/a

$ 1,034.2 

Cumulative Paid Claims and Loss Adjustment Expenses, Net of Reinsurance

Unaudited Unaudited Unaudited Unaudited Unaudited Unaudited Unaudited Unaudited Unaudited

Accident 
Year 2015 2016 2017 2018 2019 2020 2021 2022 2023 2024

2015 $ 4.2 $ 91.6 $ 105.8 $ 108.6 $ 110.5 $ 111.7 $ 112.0 $ 110.7 $ 110.9 $ 111.9 
2016  9.8  93.6  98.2  102.9  104.7  106.1  107.7  107.9  108.2 
2017  8.8  90.9  95.8  99.4  100.7  101.2  102.3  102.8 
2018  7.6  85.7  90.7  91.6  92.8  95.1  96.0 
2019  19.1  93.3  103.4  106.6  110.1  112.6 
2020  16.8  115.3  121.9  124.7  127.1 
2021  10.4  25.8  101.9  103.8 
2022  14.9  149.6  155.9 
2023  17.8  34.4 
2024  3.4 

$ 956.1 
All outstanding liabilities before 2014, net of reinsurance $ 1.5 
Liability for losses and loss expenses, net of reinsurance $ 79.6 
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d) Reconciliation of incurred and paid loss development triangles to the reserve for losses and loss expenses 

The following table reconciles the net reserve for losses and loss expenses derived from the incurred and paid loss 
development triangles to the reserve for losses and loss expenses in the consolidated balance sheet as of December 31, 2024:

December 31, 2024

Net reserve for losses and loss expenses per the loss development triangles:
Insurance: Casualty $ 1,576.0 

Professional liability  2,076.7 
Property  278.9 
Programs  591.3 
Other specialty  615.3 

Reinsurance: Property  951.7 
Casualty  1,438.0 
Specialty  79.6 

Total net reserves for losses and loss expenses per the loss development triangles: $ 7,607.5 
Reinsurance recoverable for each loss development triangle:
Insurance: Casualty $ 1,575.5 

Professional liability  1,309.9 
Property  359.3 
Programs  203.1 
Other specialty  596.7 

Reinsurance: Property  49.5 
Casualty  29.6 
Specialty  7.7 

Total reinsurance recoverables included in the loss development triangles: $ 4,131.3 
Total gross reserves for losses and loss expenses included in the loss development triangles: $ 11,738.8 
Other balances not included in the loss development triangles:

Unallocated loss adjustment expenses  157.2 
Other reserves not included in the loss development triangles  203.1 
Other  (0.6) 

 359.7 
Total gross reserves for losses and loss expenses $ 12,098.5 

e) Methods for estimating the reserve for losses and loss expenses, including IBNR reserves, and changes in 
methodologies

In general, the methods and related assumptions used for estimating the reserve for losses and loss expenses, including 
IBNR, are predicated on whether the line of business falls into one of the following two categories: short-tail line or long-tail 
line.  In certain lines of business, claims are generally reported and paid within a relatively short period of time (“short-tail 
lines”) during and following the policy coverage period. This generally enables the Company to determine with greater 
certainty the estimate of ultimate losses and loss expenses. The estimate of reserves for short-tail lines of business relies 
primarily on traditional loss reserving methodologies, utilizing selected paid and reported loss development factors, which are 
further explained below.  Short-tail lines of business in the Insurance segment include general property, energy and inland 
marine, all of which are included in the ‘property incurred and paid loss development triangle’ and aviation, accident and 
health, and marine, which are included in the ‘other specialty incurred and paid loss development triangle’. Short-tail lines of 
business in the Reinsurance segment include property reinsurance, which is included in the ‘property incurred and paid loss 
development triangle’, and crop and marine, which are included in the ‘specialty incurred and paid loss development triangle’.  
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The casualty insurance and casualty reinsurance lines of business include general liability risks, healthcare, programs, 
professional liability and other specialty risks, such as environmental and construction risks. For most of the Company’s lines 
of business, claims may be reported or settled several years after the coverage period has terminated (“long-tail lines”), which 
increases uncertainties of the reserve estimates in such lines. In addition, the attachment points for these long-tail lines can be 
relatively high, making reserving for these lines of business more difficult than short-tail lines due to having to estimate 
whether the severity of the estimated losses will exceed the attachment point.  The Company establishes a case reserve when 
sufficient information is gathered to make a reasonable estimate of the liability, which often requires a significant amount of 
information and time. Due to the lengthy reporting pattern of these casualty lines, reliance is placed on industry benchmarks 
supplemented by the Company’s own experience. For expected loss ratio selections, the Company considers its existing 
experience supplemented with analysis of loss trends, rate changes and experience of peer companies.  Long-tail lines of 
business in the Insurance segment are included in the ‘casualty incurred and paid loss development triangle’, ‘professional 
liability incurred and paid loss development triangle, ‘programs incurred and paid loss development triangle’, and ‘other 
specialty incurred and paid loss development triangle’.  Long-tail lines of business in the Reinsurance segment include casualty 
reinsurance in the ‘casualty incurred and paid loss development triangle’.  

In the Reinsurance segment, reinsurance contracts are reviewed individually, based upon individual characteristics and loss 
experience emergence. Loss reserves on assumed reinsurance often have unique features that make them more difficult to 
estimate than direct insurance. The Company establishes loss reserves upon receipt of advice from a cedent that a reserve is 
merited. The Company’s claims staff may establish additional loss reserves where, in their judgment, the amount reported by a 
cedent is potentially inadequate. The following are the most significant features that make estimating loss reserves on assumed 
reinsurance difficult:

• Reinsurers rely upon the cedents and reinsurance intermediaries to report losses in a timely fashion.
• Reinsurers must rely upon cedents to price the underlying business appropriately.
• Reinsurers have less predictable loss emergence patterns than direct insurers, particularly when writing excess-of-loss 

reinsurance.

For excess-of-loss reinsurance, cedents generally are required to report losses that either exceed 50% of the retention, have 
a reasonable probability of exceeding the retention or meet serious injury reporting criteria. For quota share reinsurance treaties, 
cedents are required to give a periodic statement of account, generally monthly or quarterly. These periodic statements typically 
include information regarding written premiums, earned premiums, unearned premiums, ceding commissions, brokerage 
amounts, applicable taxes, paid losses and outstanding losses. They can be submitted 60 to 90 days after the close of the 
reporting period. Some quota share reinsurance treaties have specific language regarding earlier notice of serious claims.

Reinsurance generally has a greater time lag than direct insurance in the reporting of claims. The time lag is caused by the 
claim first being reported to the cedent, then the intermediary (such as a broker) and finally the reinsurer. This lag can be up to 
six months or longer in certain cases. There is also a time lag because the insurer may not be required to report claims to the 
reinsurer until certain reporting criteria are met.  The Company uses reporting factors based on data from the Reinsurance 
Association of America to adjust for time lags. The Company also uses historical treaty-specific reporting factors when 
applicable. Loss and premium information are entered into the reinsurance system by the Company’s claims and accounting 
departments on a timely basis.

The expected loss ratios that are assigned to each treaty are based upon analysis and modeling performed by a team of 
pricing actuaries. The historical data reviewed by the team of pricing actuaries is considered in setting the reserves for each 
cedent. The historical data in the submissions is matched against the carried reserves for the historical treaty years.

Loss reserves do not represent an exact calculation of liability. Rather, loss reserves are estimates of what the Company 
expects the ultimate resolution and administration of claims will cost. These estimates are based on actuarial and statistical 
projections and on an assessment of currently available data, as well as estimates of future trends in claims severity and 
frequency, judicial theories of liability and other factors. Loss reserve estimates are refined as experience develops and as 
claims are reported and resolved. In addition, the relatively long periods between when a loss occurs and when it may be 
reported to the Company’s claims department for the casualty insurance and casualty reinsurance lines of business increase the 
uncertainties of the Company's reserve estimates in such lines.

The Company utilizes a variety of standard actuarial methods in its analysis. The selections from these various methods are 
based on the loss development characteristics of the specific line of business. For lines of business with long reporting periods 
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such as casualty reinsurance, the Company may rely more on an expected loss ratio method (as described below) until losses 
begin to develop. For lines of business with short reporting periods such as property insurance, the Company may rely more on 
a paid loss development method (as described below) as losses are reported relatively quickly. The actuarial methods utilized by 
the Company include:

Paid Loss Development Method.   Ultimate losses are estimated by calculating past paid loss development factors and 
applying them to exposure periods with further expected paid loss development. The paid loss development method assumes 
that losses are paid at a consistent rate. The paid loss development method provides an objective test of reported loss projections 
because paid losses contain no reserve estimates. In some circumstances, paid losses for recent periods may be too varied for 
accurate predictions. For many coverages, especially casualty coverages, claim payments are made slowly and it may take years 
for claims to be fully reported and settled. These payments may be unreliable for determining future loss projections because of 
shifts in settlement patterns or because of large settlements in the early stages of development. Choosing an appropriate “tail 
factor” to determine the amount of payments from the latest development period to the ultimate development period may also 
require considerable judgment, especially for coverages that have long payment patterns. When necessary, the Company has 
had to supplement paid loss development patterns with appropriate benchmarks.

Reported Loss Development Method.   Ultimate losses are estimated by calculating past reported loss development factors 
and applying them to exposure periods with further expected reported loss development. Since reported losses include 
payments and case reserves, changes in both of these amounts are incorporated in this method. This approach provides a larger 
volume of data to estimate ultimate losses than the paid loss development method. Thus, reported loss patterns may be less 
volatile than paid loss patterns, especially for coverages that have historically been paid out over a long period of time but for 
which claims are reported relatively early and have case loss reserve estimates established. This method assumes that reserves 
have been established using consistent practices over the historical period that is reviewed. Changes in claims handling 
procedures, large claims or significant numbers of claims of an unusual nature may cause results to be too volatile for accurate 
forecasting. Also, choosing an appropriate “tail factor” to determine the change in reported loss from the latest development 
period to the ultimate development period may require considerable judgment. When necessary, the Company has had to 
supplement reported loss development patterns with appropriate benchmarks.

Expected Loss Ratio Method.   To estimate ultimate losses under the expected loss ratio method, earned premium is 
multiplied by an expected loss ratio. The expected loss ratio is selected by utilizing industry data, historical Company data and 
professional judgment. This method is particularly useful for new lines of business where there are no historical losses or where 
past loss experience is not credible.

Bornhuetter-Ferguson Paid Loss Method.   The Bornhuetter-Ferguson paid loss method is a combination of the paid loss 
development method and the expected loss ratio method. The amount of losses yet to be paid is based upon the expected loss 
ratios and the expected percentage of losses unpaid. These expected loss ratios are modified to the extent paid losses to date 
differ from what would have been expected to have been paid based upon the selected paid loss development pattern. This 
method avoids some of the distortions that could result from a large development factor being applied to a small base of paid 
losses to calculate ultimate losses. This method will react slowly if actual loss ratios develop differently because of major 
changes in rate levels, retentions or deductibles, the forms and conditions of reinsurance coverage, the types of risks covered or 
a variety of other changes.

Bornhuetter-Ferguson Reported Loss Method. The Bornhuetter-Ferguson reported loss method is similar to the 
Bornhuetter-Ferguson paid loss method, except that it uses reported losses and reported loss development factors.

In general, the Company will adjust its reliance on actuarial methods utilized for certain casualty lines of business and 
accident or treaty years within each of the operating segments shifting from the expected loss ratio method to the Bornhuetter-
Ferguson reported loss method to loss development methods in varying degrees depending on the class of business, for example 
excess casualty versus primary casualty, and how old the accident or treaty year is. Placing greater reliance on more responsive 
actuarial methods for certain casualty lines of business and accident or treaty years within each of the Company’s operating 
segments is a natural progression that allows further refinement to the estimate of the reserve for losses and loss expenses. The 
Company will continue to utilize the expected loss ratio method for the most recent accident and treaty years until the Company 
has sufficient experience to utilize other acceptable actuarial methodologies. The Company will continue to evaluate and 
monitor the development of losses and the impact it has on the Company's current and future assumptions.

ALLIED WORLD ASSURANCE COMPANY, LTD
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

(Expressed in millions of United States dollars, except share, per share, percentage and ratio information)

36



The Company believes recognition of the reserve changes in the period they were recorded was appropriate since a pattern 
of reported losses had not emerged and the loss years were previously too immature to deviate from the expected loss ratio 
method in prior periods.

f) Average historical claims duration

The following is unaudited supplementary information about average historical claims duration for lines of business within 
each operating segment as of December 31, 2024. The tables below present the average annual payout of incurred claims by 
age, net of reinsurance.  This information provides an estimate of the average length of time it takes for losses to be incurred.  
As discussed above, short-tail lines will have average historical claim durations that occur over the first several years, whereas 
long-tail lines will have claim durations that extend over many years.  The averages calculated below are simple averages based 
on the ratio of net paid losses in a given accident year to the most recent incurred losses for that same accident year.  As such, 
the averages noted below may overstate or understate the actual claims duration.  For example, smaller lines of business that 
recently started writing insurance policies could have abnormally high average claim duration percentages compared to more 
mature lines of business. 

Years 1 2 3 4 5 6 7 8 9 10
Insurance
Casualty  3 %  11 %  13 %  21 %  16 %  12 %  10 %  6 %  3 %  5 %
Professional liability  4 %  15 %  16 %  16 %  13 %  11 %  8 %  8 %  4 %  4 %
Property  34 %  37 %  13 %  6 %  3 %  1 %  1 %  3 %  — %  — %
Programs  12 %  22 %  16 %  13 %  11 %  9 %  5 %  3 %  3 %  4 %
Other specialty  12 %  21 %  15 %  11 %  12 %  7 %  5 %  5 %  3 %  5 %
Reinsurance
Property  27 %  33 %  17 %  10 %  5 %  3 %  3 %  1 %  — %  1 %
Casualty  3 %  8 %  11 %  17 %  14 %  14 %  11 %  8 %  5 %  2 %
Specialty  11 %  65 %  14 %  3 %  2 %  1 %  1 %  — %  — %  1 %

7.     CEDED REINSURANCE

The Company purchases reinsurance from third-party and affiliate reinsurance companies to reduce its net exposure to 
losses. Reinsurance provides for recovery of a portion of gross losses and loss expenses from these reinsurers. The Company 
remains liable to the extent that its reinsurers do not meet their obligations under the related reinsurance contracts. The 
Company therefore regularly evaluates the financial condition of its reinsurers and monitors concentration of credit risk. The 
Company believes that as of December 31, 2024, its reinsurers are able to meet, and will meet, all of their obligations under the 
respective agreements. The amount of reinsurance recoverable is as follows:

December 31, 
2024

December 31, 
2023

OSLR recoverable $ 836.1 $ 956.1 
IBNR recoverable  3,304.4  3,338.0 
Reinsurance recoverable $ 4,140.5 $ 4,294.1 
Reinsurance recoverable on paid losses $ 370.3 $ 341.9 
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Direct, assumed and ceded premiums written and earned and losses and loss expenses incurred are as follows:

Premiums
Written

Premiums
Earned

Losses and
Loss

Expenses
Year Ended December 31, 2024

Direct $ 4,647.1 $ 4,652.6 $ 3,086.9 
Assumed  2,061.4  1,974.3  1,254.8 
Ceded  (2,025.6)  (1,996.6)  (1,240.0) 

$ 4,682.9 $ 4,630.3 $ 3,101.7 
Year Ended December 31, 2023

Direct $ 4,639.2 $ 4,593.1 $ 3,242.9 
Assumed  1,842.0  1,629.1  1,016.3 
Ceded  (1,962.7)  (1,937.6)  (1,337.2) 

$ 4,518.5 $ 4,284.6 $ 2,922.0 
 

Of the premiums ceded during the years ended December 31, 2024 and December 31, 2023, approximately 35.4% and 
36.3%, respectively, were ceded to four reinsurers.

The Company actively manages its reinsurance exposures by generally selecting reinsurers having a credit rating of “A-” 
or higher and monitoring the overall credit quality of its reinsurers to ensure that recoverables will be collected.

December 31, 2024
A.M. Best

Rating
Reinsurance
Recoverable

Percentage
of Total

Prepaid  
Reinsurance(1)

Percentage of 
Total

Swiss Re A+ $ 536.2  13.0 % $ 110.2  9.4 %
Munich Re A+  354.3  8.6 %  18.4  1.6 %
Sompo Holdings A+  342.3  8.3 %  123.5  10.6 %
Everest Re A+  296.0  7.1 %  88.3  7.6 %
Renaissance Re A+  278.8  6.7 %  107.3  9.2 %
Top five reinsurers  1,807.6  43.7 %  447.7  38.4 %
Other reinsurers’ balances  2,332.9  56.3 %  721.8  61.6 %
Total reinsurance recoverable $ 4,140.5  100.0 % $ 1,169.5  100.0 %

December 31, 2023
A.M. Best

Rating
Reinsurance
Recoverable

Percentage
of Total

Prepaid 
Reinsurance(1)

Percentage of 
Total

Swiss Re A+ $ 589.9  13.7 % $ 131.6  11.5 %
Munich Re A+  464.1  10.8 %  27.5  2.4 %
Sompo Holdings A+  301.1  7.0 %  108.2  9.4 %
Everest Re A+  293.4  6.9 %  94.3  8.2 %
Odyssey Re A+  282.9  6.6 %  100.3  8.7 %
Top five reinsurers  1,931.4  45.0 %  461.9  40.2 %
Other reinsurers’ balances  2,362.7  55.0 %  686.6  59.8 %
Total reinsurance recoverable $ 4,294.1  100.0 % $ 1,148.5  100.0 %

(1) Prepaid reinsurance represents unearned premiums ceded to reinsurance companies.

Approximately 92.6% and 92.6% of ceded reserves were recoverable from reinsurers who had an A.M. Best rating of 
“A” or higher as of December 31, 2024 and December 31, 2023, respectively.
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Ceded Reinsurance - Credit Losses

The following table represents a rollforward of the reinsurance recoverable and reinsurance recoverable on paid losses 
allowance:
 2024 2023
Balance at beginning of year $ 2.2 $ 2.2 
Balance at end of year $ 2.2 $ 2.2 

8.     FUNDS HELD

The Company was party to a collateralized property catastrophe quota share reinsurance contract, whereby the Company 
had assumed property catastrophe business on a funds held basis. The capital commitment is recorded in “Funds held” on the 
consolidated balance sheets.  The funds held balance related to this collateralized  property catastrophe quota share contract as 
of December 31, 2024 and December 31, 2023 was $52.0 million and $76.8 million, respectively. 

As part of a loss portfolio transfer entered into with Darag Deutschland, AG for the Company's primary casualty business, 
the Company has accrued $5.8 million and $7.1 million as reinsurance funds held in the consolidated balance sheets as of 
December 31, 2024 and December 31, 2023, respectively.

9.     GOODWILL AND INTANGIBLE ASSETS

The following table shows the Company’s goodwill and intangible assets as of December 31, 2024 and December 31, 
2023:

 Goodwill

Indefinite-Lived
Intangible

Assets Finite-Lived Intangible Assets

 
Net Carrying

Value
Net Carrying

Value
Gross Carrying

Value
Accumulated
Amortization

Net Carrying
Value

Balance at December 31, 2023 $ 390.7 $ 23.9 $ 121.6 $ (88.3) $ 33.3 
Amortization of intangible assets  —  —  —  (3.7)  (3.7) 
Foreign currency translation adjustment  (1.0)  —  —  (0.6)  (0.6) 
Balance at December 31, 2024 $ 389.7 $ 23.9 $ 121.6 $ (92.6) $ 29.0 

 
When testing for impairment, the Company may first assesses qualitative factors and whether those factors indicate that it 

is more likely than not that the fair value of a reporting unit ("RU") is less than its carrying amount. The results of the 
qualitative assessment will determine if the Company will proceed with a quantitative goodwill impairment test. The qualitative 
impairment indicators include whether there was:

• Deterioration in macroeconomic conditions;
• Deterioration in the industry or environment within which the Company operates;
• Increasing cost factors leading to a negative effect on earnings or cash flow;
• A decline in overall financial performance of the Company;
• Any other Company-specific events (e.g., litigation, bankruptcy); 
• Other events affecting the reporting unit (e.g., selling all or a portion of reporting unit's goodwill); and
• A combined ratio of greater than 100% of the reporting unit.

As of December 31, 2024 and December 31, 2023, the qualitative factors did not indicate the fair value of a RU is less 
than its carrying value.

The impairment reviews for goodwill and indefinite-lived intangibles did not result in the recognition of impairment 
losses for the years ended December 31, 2024 and 2023.

As of December 31, 2024, the net carrying value of the finite-lived intangible assets is net of accumulated impairment 
charges of $9.2 million. As of December 31, 2024, the net carrying value of the finite-lived intangible assets is comprised of 

ALLIED WORLD ASSURANCE COMPANY, LTD
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

(Expressed in millions of United States dollars, except share, per share, percentage and ratio information)

39



distribution network intangible assets of $29.0 million. As of December 31, 2023, the net carrying value of the finite-lived 
intangible assets was comprised of distribution network intangible assets of $32.8 million.

As of December 31, 2024 and 2023, the net carrying value of indefinite-lived intangible assets are comprised of the 
insurance licenses for certain U.S. subsidiaries of the Company.   

The estimated amortization expense for each of the five succeeding fiscal years and thereafter related to the Company’s 
finite-lived intangible assets is as follows:

 Amount

2025 $ 3.7 
2026  3.7 
2027  3.7 
2028  3.7 
2029  3.7 
2030 and thereafter  10.5 
Total $ 29.0 

10.     DEBT AND FINANCING ARRANGEMENTS

a) Financing Structure

The following table shows the Company’s financing structure:

Outstanding(1) Balance(2)

December 31, 2024
Swiss office building mortgage  16.7  16.7 
$900 million secured letter of credit facility — uncommitted  519.7  — 

$ 536.4 $ 16.7 
December 31, 2023
Swiss office building mortgage  18.0  18.0 
$900 million secured letter of credit facility — uncommitted  652.7  — 

$ 670.7 $ 18.0 
(1) Indicates utilization of commitment amount, not drawn borrowings where applicable.
(2) Represents the principal amount borrowed, net of unamortized discount.

b) Swiss Office Building Mortgage

In 2014, the Company entered into a 20-year mortgage commitment with a Swiss bank for the construction of a 
Company-used office building in Zug, Switzerland. The total proceeds received in 2014 under the mortgage were $14.2 million 
(CHF 14.0 million) with a fixed annual interest rate of 3.2% payable quarterly. An additional $4.0 million (CHF 4.0 million) of 
proceeds from the mortgage was drawn during the first quarter of 2015. The mortgage payments are $0.3 million (CHF 0.3 
million) per year, plus accrued interest, for the first 19 years with the remaining balance payable at the end of the mortgage.  
The outstanding balance of the mortgage is included in “Other long-term debt” on the consolidated balance sheets.

c) Credit Facilities

Allied World Assurance Company, Ltd has a collateralized amended letter of credit facility with Citibank Europe plc that 
has been and will continue to be used to issue standby letters of credit. The maximum aggregate amount available under this 
letter of credit facility as of December 31, 2024 and December 31, 2023 was $900.0 million on an uncommitted basis.
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d) Federal Home Loan Bank Membership
          
          On December 20, 2024, a subsidiary of the Company is a member of the Federal Home Loan Banks (“FHLBs”). 
Members may borrow from the FHLBs at competitive rates subject to certain conditions. Conditions include maintaining 
sufficient collateral deposits for funding and a requirement to hold stock in the FHLBs related to both membership and 
outstanding advances. At December 31, 2024, the Company had no advances outstanding under the FHLB program. 

e) Debt Maturities 

The following table reflects the Company’s debt maturities, comprised of other long-term debt:

 Amount
2025 $ 0.3 
2026  0.3 
2027  0.3 
2028  0.3 
2029  0.3 
2030 and thereafter  15.2 
Total $ 16.7 

11.     INCOME TAXES

On December 27, 2023, the Government of Bermuda enacted a new 15.0% corporate tax effective for all companies 
domiciled in Bermuda and for fiscal years beginning on or after January 1, 2025. For the year ended December 31, 2024, the 
Company continues to record a $153.0 million deferred tax asset related to the Bermuda corporate tax law.

Certain subsidiaries of the AWACH Bermuda file U.S. federal income tax returns and various U.S. state income tax 
returns, as well as income tax returns in Canada, Hong Kong, Ireland, Singapore, Switzerland, Australia, Labuan and the United 
Kingdom. The Company has open tax years that are potentially subject to examinations by local tax authorities in the following 
major tax jurisdictions: the U.S., 2021 to 2024; Canada, 2016 to 2022; the United Kingdom, 2023 and 2024; Ireland, 2020 to 
2024; Switzerland, 2022 to 2024; Hong Kong, 2018 to 2024; Australia, 2020 to 2024 and Singapore, 2021 to 2024.  As of 
December 31, 2024, to the best of the Company's knowledge, there are no pending audit examinations.  

Management has concluded all material tax positions to have a greater than 50% likelihood of being sustained based on 
technical merits if challenged. The Company does not expect a significant change in unrecognized tax benefits within 
12 months of December 31, 2024.

The components of income tax expense are as follows:

 Year Ended December 31,
 2024 2023
Current income tax expense (benefit) $ 242.0 $ 108.7 
Deferred income tax expense (benefit)  (81.7)  (81.9) 
Income tax expense (benefit) $ 160.3 $ 26.8 

The Company's income or loss is primarily sourced from the Company's Bermuda, U.S., European, including 
Switzerland, and Asia Pacific operations. The income (loss) before income taxes for these operations are as follows:

ALLIED WORLD ASSURANCE COMPANY, LTD
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

(Expressed in millions of United States dollars, except share, per share, percentage and ratio information)

41



 Year Ended December 31,
 2024 2023
Bermuda $ 334.1 $ 394.1 
United States  697.0  778.8 
All other jurisdictions  36.0  115.8 
Income (loss) before income taxes $ 1,067.1 $ 1,288.7 

 

Deferred income taxes reflect the tax impact of temporary differences between the carrying amounts of assets and 
liabilities for financial reporting and income tax purposes, and are stated at the various enacted jurisdictional tax rates expected 
to be in effect when the reported amounts are recovered or settled. The significant components of the net deferred tax assets are 
as follows:

 December 31,

 2024 2023
Deferred tax assets:

Reserve for losses and loss expenses $ 107.7 $ 95.6 
Equity compensation  19.6  15.2 
Unearned premium  74.5  73.8 
Intangible assets  121.9  121.9 
Tax credits  3.7  5.5 
Premises and equipment  14.1  15.9 
Net loss carryforward  26.4  30.7 
Other  (0.4)  5.1 
Total deferred tax assets  367.5  363.7 

Deferred tax liabilities:
Intangible assets related to business acquisitions  (6.7)  (7.4) 
Depreciation  (15.5)  (16.8) 
Unrealized appreciation and timing differences on investments  (10.7)  (76.4) 
Deferred acquisition costs  (47.2)  (45.6) 
Other  (8.5)  (11.3) 
Total deferred tax liabilities  (88.6)  (157.5) 

Net deferred taxes before valuation allowance  278.9  206.2 
Valuation allowance  (31.6)  (40.8) 

Net deferred tax asset (liability) $ 247.3 $ 165.4 

The valuation allowance reported in the current period relates to net operating loss carryforwards for the European and 
Asia Pacific operations as it is unlikely those operations will have sufficient income to utilize the net loss carryforwards in the 
near term.  The valuation allowance decreased by $9.1 million for the year ended December 31, 2024 compared to the year 
ended December 31, 2023, mainly due to lower net operating losses which are now fully provided for. The net loss 
carryforwards from the United Kingdom and Asia Pacific operations do not expire. The net loss carryforward in the Company's 
Swiss operations expire within seven years. 

Current tax receivable and payable have been included on the consolidated balance sheet in “other assets” and “accounts 
payable and accrued liabilities,” respectively. Current taxes receivable or payable was as follows:

 December 31,
 2024 2023
Current tax receivable $ — $ — 
Current tax payable $ 39.4 $ 16.3 
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The expected tax provision has been calculated using the pre-tax accounting income in each jurisdiction multiplied by 
that jurisdiction’s applicable statutory tax rate. The statutory tax rates for the Company's Bermuda, U.S., Canada, Hong Kong, 
Ireland, Singapore, Australia, Labuan and Switzerland operations are 15%, 21%, 26.3%, 16.5%, 12.5%, 17%, 30%, 24% and 
7.8%, respectively.  

The reconciliation between the Company’s effective tax rate on pre-tax accounting income and the expected tax rate is as 
follows:
 Year Ended December 31,
 2024 2023
Statutory tax rate  — %  — %
Valuation allowance  (0.7) %  0.3 %
Foreign taxes at local tax rates  16.4 %  15.0 %
Prior year refunds and adjustments  (0.1) %  (0.7) %
Change in Bermuda tax law  — %  (11.9) %
Other  (0.6) %  (0.6) %
Effective tax rate  15.0 %  2.1 %

12.     SHAREHOLDERS’ EQUITY

a) Authorized shares

The issued share capital of the Company consists of the following:

 December 31,
 2024 2023
Common shares issued and fully paid, par value $1 per share 1,072,849 1,072,849
Share capital at end of period $ 1.1 $ 1.1 

b) Dividends

Dividends declared on common stock were $411.0 million and $160.0 million for the years ended December 31, 2024 
and 2023, respectively.

13.     EMPLOYEE BENEFIT PLANS

a) Share based awards

The Company participates in the Fairfax Plan, which generally provides officers, key employees and directors who were 
employed by or provided services to the Company or its subsidiaries with awards of restricted shares of Fairfax common stock. 
The restricted share awards vest on the five-year anniversary of the grant date. The grant date fair value is measured based on 
the closing price of Fairfax’s common shares on the date of grant, converted to United States dollars. Allied World Assurance 
Company Holdings I, Ltd., recharges the stock compensation expense for employees of the Company.
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The activity related to the Company's restricted share awards is as follows:

Year Ended December 31, 2024

 
Number of 

Awards

Weighted
Average

Grant Date
Fair Value

Outstanding at beginning of year  402,495 $ 505.2 
Restricted share awards granted  61,364  971.8 
Restricted share awards forfeited  (20,342)  549.7 
Restricted share awards fully vested  (32,722)  486.7 
Transfers out  (1,424)  537.0 
Outstanding restricted share awards at end of year  409,371 $ 539.0 

The Company recorded compensation expense of $— million and $— million during the years ended December 31, 2024 
and December 31, 2023, respectively, for these awards. The weighted average remaining vesting period for these awards is 2.9 
years as of December 31, 2024. The Company paid $12.0 million and $1.2 million to settle restricted share awards during the 
year ended December 31, 2024 and December 31, 2023, respectively.

b) Pension Plans

The Company provides defined contribution retirement plans for its employees and officers. Contributions are made by 
the Company, and in some locations, these contributions are supplemented by the local plan participants. Contributions are 
based on a percentage of the participant’s base salary depending upon competitive local market practice and vesting provisions 
meeting legal compliance standards.  The amount that an individual employee or officer can contribute may also be subject to 
regulatory requirements relating to the country of which the individual is a citizen. The Company incurred expenses for these 
defined contribution arrangements of $15.6 million and $15.5 million for the years ended December 31, 2024 and 
December 31, 2023, respectively.

c) Employee Share Purchase Plan

Under the Company (Non-Qualified) Employee Share Purchase Plan (“ESPP”), eligible employees are given the election 
to purchase Fairfax common shares in an amount up to 10% of their annual base salary. The Company matches these 
contributions by purchasing, on the employee's behalf, a number of Fairfax common shares equal in value to 30% of the 
employee's contribution.  In the event that the Company achieves a net combined ratio in any calendar year that is less than 
100%, then the Company allocates an additional contribution in an amount equal to 20% of the aggregate amount of the 
participant contributions during the calendar year. The Company recognized compensation expense under the ESPP of $3.8 
million and $3.4 million for the years ended December 31, 2024 and December 31, 2023, respectively.

14.    COMMITMENTS AND CONTINGENCIES

a)    Concentrations of Credit Risk

Credit risk arises out of the failure of a counterparty to perform according to the terms of the contract.

The Company’s investment portfolio is managed pursuant to guidelines that follow prudent standards of diversification. 
The guidelines limit the allowable holdings of a single issue and issuers. The Company believes that there are no significant 
concentrations of credit risk associated with its investment portfolio. As of December 31, 2024 and December 31, 2023, 
substantially all of the Company’s cash and investments were held with one custodian. The total carrying value of cash and 
securities deposited by the Company's insurance subsidiaries under requirements of regulatory authorities was $245.0 million 
and $249.8 million at December 31, 2024 and December 31, 2023, respectively.

Insurance balances receivable primarily consist of net premiums due from insureds and reinsureds. The Company 
believes that the counterparties to these receivables are able to meet, and will meet, all of their obligations. The Company’s 
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credit risk is further reduced by the contractual right to offset loss obligations or unearned premiums against premiums 
receivable. The insurance balances receivable that are outstanding for more than 90 days was $14.5 million and $17.9 million as 
of December 31, 2024 and December 31, 2023, respectively, which represented 0.8% and 1.2% of the total receivable balance 
for their respective years.

The following table represents a rollforward of the insurance balances receivable allowance:
 2024 2023
Balance at beginning of year $ 4.0 $ 4.6 
Addition to (release of) allowance for expected credit losses, net  —  (0.6) 
Balance at end of year $ 4.0 $ 4.0 

b)    Operating Leases

The Company leases office space under operating leases expiring in various years through 2033. As of December 31, 
2024, the lease liability and corresponding right of use asset reflected in "Accounts payable and accrued liabilities" and "Other 
assets" were $95.1 million and $88.0 million, respectively, and the Company made cash payments of $21.9 million in 
connection with those leases. The lease liability excludes non-lease components, such as property taxes and common area 
maintenance. Some of these leases contain renewal options after a specified period of time at the prevailing market rate; 
however, renewal options that have not been exercised as of December 31, 2024 are excluded until the Company attains a 
reasonable level of certainty that the renewal option will be exercised. Some leases also include termination options; however, 
termination options are not reflected in the right of use asset or lease liability until they have been exercised.

The weighted average discount rate and remaining lease term assumptions used in determining the liability are 5.2% and 
5.5 years, respectively. The primary assumption used to determine the discount rate is the cost of funding for the Company, 
which is based on the secured borrowing rate for the Company's outstanding senior notes and published yields for insurance or 
other financial services companies with similar credit ratings as the Company.

The following are future undiscounted minimum rental payments as of December 31, 2024. The primary difference 
between the Company's undiscounted cash flows and the recognized lease liability is interest expense.

 Amount

2025 $ 21.7 
2026  20.8 
2027  17.2 
2028  15.8 
2029  14.5 
2030 and thereafter  15.6 

$ 105.6 

Total rent expense for the years ended December 31, 2024 and December 31, 2023 was $23.2 million and $22.6 million, 
respectively. The Company recorded sublease income for the years ended December 31, 2024 and December 31, 2023 of $1.1 
million and $1.1 million, respectively.

c)  Producers

The three largest individual producers as a percentage of gross premiums written are as follows:

Year Ended 
December 31, 

2024

Year Ended 
December 31, 

2023
Marsh & McLennan Companies, Inc.  26 % Marsh & McLennan Companies, Inc.  26 %
Aon Corporation  13 % Aon Corporation  13 %
Willis Group Holdings  5 % Amwins  5 %
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d)    Legal Proceedings

The Company, in common with the insurance industry in general, is subject to litigation and arbitration in the normal 
course of its business. These legal proceedings generally relate to claims asserted by or against the Company in the ordinary 
course of insurance or reinsurance operations. Estimated amounts payable under these proceedings are included in the reserve 
for losses and loss expenses in the Company’s consolidated balance sheets. As of December 31, 2024, the Company was not a 
party to any material legal proceedings arising outside the ordinary course of business that management believes will have a 
material adverse effect on the Company’s results of operations, financial position or cash flow.

e) Indemnity Liability Agreement

As of December 31, 2024 and December 31, 2023, the Company has accrued $11.4 million and $18.4 million 
respectively, related to certain indemnity agreements that Fairfax and the Company are a party to, in "Accounts payable and 
accrued liabilities" on the consolidated balance sheets.

15.    STATUTORY CAPITAL AND SURPLUS

The Company’s ability to pay dividends is subject to certain regulatory restrictions on the payment of dividends by its 
subsidiaries. The payment of such dividends is limited by applicable laws and statutory requirements of the jurisdictions in 
which the Company and its subsidiaries operate. The total amount of restricted net assets for the Company’s consolidated 
subsidiaries as of December 31, 2024 was $4,474.2 million.

The minimum required statutory capital and surplus is the amount of statutory capital and surplus necessary to satisfy 
regulatory requirements based on the Company’s current operations. The statutory capital and surplus and minimum required 
statutory capital and surplus for the Company’s most significant regulatory jurisdictions at December 31, 2024 and 
December 31, 2023 were as follows:
 

 December 31, 2024 December 31, 2023

 

Statutory
Capital and

Surplus

Minimum
Required
Statutory

Capital and
Surplus

Statutory
Capital and

Surplus

Minimum
Required
Statutory

Capital and
Surplus

Bermuda $ 5,169.1 $ 812.9 $ 4,556.7 $ 729.0 
United States  3,273.8  778.7  2,738.6  775.8 
Ireland  495.1  219.5  525.1  199.3 
Switzerland  282.0  152.6  286.4  155.7 

There were no state-prescribed or permitted regulatory accounting practices for any of the Company's insurance entities 
that resulted in reported statutory surplus that differed from that which would have been reported under the prescribed practices 
of the respective regulatory authorities, including the National Association of Insurance Commissioners. Statutory accounting 
under the prescribed practices of the respective regulatory authorities differs from U.S. GAAP accounting in the treatment of 
various items, including reporting of investments, acquisition costs and deferred income taxes.

The statutory net income (loss) for the Company’s most significant regulatory jurisdictions for the years ended 
December 31, 2024 and December 31, 2023 was as follows:

 Year Ended December 31,
2024 2023

Bermuda $ 906.8 $ 1,261.9 
United States  685.3  345.3 
Ireland  10.1  48.1 
Switzerland  (8.8)  (37.1) 
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At December 31, 2024, the maximum amount of ordinary dividends or distributions that can be paid, without prior 
regulatory approval, for the Company’s most significant regulatory jurisdictions, were as follows: 

 December 31, 2024
Bermuda $ 1,139.2 
United States  204.1 
Ireland  131.9 
Switzerland  — 

a)    Bermuda

The Company, is registered under the Bermuda Insurance Act 1978 and related regulations as amended. As a Class 4
insurer, Allied World Assurance Company, Ltd is required to maintain minimum solvency standards and to hold available
statutory capital and surplus equal to or exceeding the enhanced capital requirements as determined by the Bermuda Monetary 
Authority under the Bermuda Solvency Capital Requirement model (“BSCR model”). The BSCR model is a risk-based capital 
model that provides a method for determining an insurer’s minimum required capital taking into account the risk characteristics 
of different aspects of the insurer's business. In addition, this subsidiary is required to maintain a minimum liquidity ratio. As of 
December 31, 2023 and December 31, 2022, this subsidiary met the requirements.

b)    United States

The Company’s U.S. insurance subsidiaries are subject to the insurance laws and regulations of the states in which they 
are domiciled, and also states in which they are licensed or authorized to transact business. These laws also restrict the amount 
of ordinary shareholder dividends the subsidiaries can pay. The restrictions are generally based on statutory surplus and/or 
statutory net income as determined in accordance with the relevant statutory accounting requirements of the individual 
domiciliary states. The U.S. subsidiaries are required to file annual statements with insurance regulatory authorities prepared on 
an accounting basis prescribed or permitted by such authorities. The U.S. subsidiaries are also required to maintain minimum 
levels of solvency and liquidity as determined by law, and comply with capital requirements and licensing rules. As of 
December 31, 2024 and December 31, 2023, the actual levels of solvency, liquidity and capital of each U.S. subsidiary were in 
excess of the minimum levels required.

c)    Ireland

The Company’s Irish insurance subsidiary is regulated by the Central Bank of Ireland pursuant to the Insurance Acts 
1909 to 2018 (as amended), the Central Bank Acts 1942 to 2018 and all statutory instruments relating to insurance made or 
adopted under the European Communities Acts 1972 to 2012, including the European Union (Insurance and Reinsurance) 
Regulations, 2015 (as amended). This subsidiary is required to maintain a minimum level of capital. As of December 31, 2024 
and December 31, 2023, these requirements were met. The amount of dividends that this subsidiary is permitted to distribute is 
restricted to accumulated realized profits that have not been capitalized or distributed, less accumulated realized losses that have 
not been written off. The solvency and capital requirements must still be met following any distribution.

d)    Switzerland

The Company’s Swiss insurance subsidiary, Allied World Assurance Company, AG, is regulated by the Swiss Financial 
Market Supervisory Authority (“FINMA”) pursuant to the Insurance Supervisory Law. This subsidiary’s accounts are prepared 
in accordance with the Swiss Code of Obligations and the Insurance Supervisory Law. This subsidiary is obligated to maintain 
a minimum level of capital based on the Swiss Code of Obligations, a minimum of tied assets based on the Insurance 
Supervisory Law and a minimum solvency margin in accordance with the Swiss Solvency Test. As of December 31, 2024 and 
December 31, 2023, this subsidiary met the requirements. The amount of dividends that this subsidiary is permitted to distribute 
is restricted to freely distributable reserves which consist of retained earnings, the current year profit and legal reserves to a 
certain extent. Any dividend requires shareholder approval and where dividends would materially negatively affect the financial 
means or solvency of the Company, FINMA approval may be required. The solvency and capital requirements must still be met 
following any distribution.
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e)    Branch Offices

The Company’s insurance subsidiaries maintain branch offices in Australia, Bermuda, Canada, Hong Kong, Labuan, 
Singapore, Switzerland and the United Kingdom. As branch offices are not considered separate legal entities, the required and 
actual statutory capital and surplus amounts for each jurisdiction in the table above include amounts related to the branch 
offices. These branch offices are subject to additional minimum capital or asset requirements in their countries of domicile. At 
December 31, 2024 and December 31, 2023, the actual capital and surplus for each of these branches exceeded the relevant 
local regulatory requirements.

16. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

The Company has entered into various assumed and ceded reinsurance contracts with several entities that are controlled by 
Fairfax.  The following summarizes the balances and activity as of December 31, 2024 and December 31, 2023 and the periods 
then ended:

 

As of December 31, 2024 and 
for the year ended 
December 31, 2024

As of December 31, 2023 and 
for the year ended 
December 31, 2023

Balance Sheet:
ASSETS:
Reinsurance recoverables $ 465.5 $ 463.9 
Insurance balances receivable  4.9  9.6 
Prepaid reinsurance  146.1  145.3 
Reinsurance recoverables on paid losses  13.4  12.0 
Loans  157.8  155.0 
Investments in affiliates and associates(1)  1,889.1  1,440.7 
Balances receivable on sale of investments  —  699.6 
LIABILITIES:
Reserve for losses and loss expenses  90.6  85.3 
Unearned premiums  8.7  13.8 
Deferred ceding commission income  44.7  44.8 
Reinsurance balances payable  209.5  211.0 
Balances due on purchases of investments  —  747.7 

Income Statement:
Assumed written premiums  50.8  61.8 
Change in unearned assumed premiums  8.7  (2.4) 
Ceded written premiums  (274.9)  (279.2) 
Change in unearned ceded premiums  31.9  29.3 
Assumed losses and loss expenses  32.7  34.1 
Ceded losses and loss expenses  (151.6)  (133.4) 
Ceding commission income earned  (69.3)  (67.1) 
Investment management fees  (37.4)  (34.3) 
Interest and dividend income (expense)  8.6  21.3 
Realized and unrealized gains (losses) on investments  122.4  212.6 

(1) As of December 31, 2024, $888.3 million included in "other invested assets," $986.7 million included in "equity securities" and $14.1 
million included in "fixed maturity investments" on the consolidated balance sheets. As of December 31, 2023, $435.8 million included in 
"other invested assets," $991.4 million included in "equity securities" and $13.5 million included in "fixed maturity investments" on the 
consolidated balance sheets.
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The Company's subsidiaries have entered into investment management agreements with Fairfax and its wholly-owned 
subsidiary, Hamblin Watsa Investment Counsel Ltd. These agreements generally provide for an annual base fee, calculated and 
paid quarterly based upon each subsidiary's average invested assets for the preceding three months, and an incentive fee, which 
is payable if realized gains on equity investments exceed certain benchmarks. These agreements may be terminated by either 
party on 30 days' notice. During the year ended December 31, 2024 and December 31, 2023, the Company incurred $37.4 
million and $34.3 million, respectively, in investment management fees, which were included as a reduction to net investment 
income in the consolidated financial statements.

Effective in 2018, the Company entered into an agreement to act as the fronting company for non-U.S. Fairfax affiliate 
companies that participate in the Fairfax Internal Reinsurance Vehicle (the "FIRV").  The agreement provides that certain 
Fairfax affiliate companies cede activity to the fronting company, who then cedes that activity to another Fairfax designated 
entity.  The Company receives a fronting fee for the administration of the cessions. The assumed and ceded activity related to 
the FIRV is recorded in insurance balances receivable, reinsurance payable, and ceding commission income earned. The 
fronting fee for the year ended December 31, 2024 and December 31, 2023 is $0.7 million and $1.2 million, respectively, and is 
recorded in "acquisition costs" in the consolidated income statements.

 The Company has also entered into various assumed reinsurance contracts with several entities that are controlled by 
AWACH Bermuda but are not consolidated by the Company.  The following summarizes the balances and activity for the year 
ended December 31, 2024 and December 31, 2023:

 

As of December 31, 2024 and 
for the year ended December 

31, 2024

As of December 31, 2023 and 
for the year ended December 

31, 2023

Balance Sheet:
ASSETS:
Reinsurance recoverables  9.2  9.2 
LIABILITIES:
Reserve for losses and loss expenses  202.7  169.2 
Unearned premiums  50.0  44.4 
Deferred ceding commission income  17.1  15.1 
Reinsurance balances payable 136.4 115.6

Income Statement:
Assumed written premiums  108.7  95.6 
Assumed earned premiums  103.1  90.3 
Assumed losses and loss expenses  (83.3)  (54.7) 
Acquisition cost expenses  (34.7)  (29.9) 
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17. RESTRICTED CASH

The following table provides a reconciliation of cash, cash equivalents and restricted cash reported within the consolidated 
balance sheets that sum to the total of the same amounts shown in the statement of cash flows.

December 31, 2024 December 31, 2023

Cash and cash equivalents $ 562.7 $ 409.0 
Restricted cash  417.2  46.0 
Total cash, cash equivalents, and restricted cash shown in the statement of 
cash flows $ 979.9 $ 455.0 

Restricted cash primarily relates to cash held in trust accounts in favor of cedents, other counterparties or government 
authorities, as well as accounts that are pledged as collateral for the Company’s letter of credit facilities and investments.  As of 
December 31, 2024, $369.0 million of the restricted cash held in a depository trust related to an upcoming Fairfax purchase of 
Blizzard Vacatia Equity Partners LLC ("Blizzard"), which was released on January 1, 2025.

18.    SUBSEQUENT EVENTS

 The Company considers events or transactions that occur after the consolidated balance sheet date but before the 
consolidated financial statements are available to be issued to provide additional evidence relative to certain estimates or to 
identify matters that require additional disclosure. Subsequent events have been evaluated through April 29, 2025, the date that 
the consolidated financial statements were available to be issued. On January 1, 2025, using in part the $369.0 million of 
restricted cash from the Company, Fairfax acquired 50% of the equity interest in Blizzard, for $835.0 million.
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